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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Stalements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Executve Leadershap Group t“ELG ') presents the audited Financial Siatements to the members of Chitord Chance LLP. a
lLimned hiability partershup tegistered in England and Wales with registered number QC323571 A hst of members’ names 15
available for mspection a1 10 {'pper Bank Siwect, London, E14 5JJ, United Kmgdom, which 15 alse Chiford Chance | [ P's
principal place of business and registered office

Basis of preparation of the inancial statements

These audited financial statements of Clifford Chance | LP {"the firm” ¢ 'L Iy and 1ts subsidiaries for the year ended 30 April
2023 have been prepared i accordance with | K-adopted Intemnational Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the
 ompanies Act 2006 as applicable to Lunited Liabihty Pantnerships reporting under those standards

Principal activities
The principal activity 1s the provision of legal services. All resulis derive from continuing activities
Group structure

Chifford Chance s the collective name for an intermanonal legal practice comprising Chifford Chance 11U P and 1its subsidian
entities The consolidated finangial statements incorporaie the financial siatements of Chfford Chance 11 P and s subsidiary
entiies The consohdated resulis for the years ended 30 April 2323 and 2022 represent a censohidanon of all entities controlled
cuther directly or mdsrectly by Chflord Chance [ LP These entities may be branches parinerships or s¢parate corporate entitics
(“the Group') Clifford Chance || ¥ pracuces through overscas branches i Abu Dhabi Amsterdam, Beymg, Brussels, Dubat
and Shangha

Managrment

The 11 G chaired by the fimis Managang Partner sets (he Group's stratepy and oversees its implementation. The effecuvencss
ol the | LG s reviewed by she Partnership Counctl. fed by the Group's Senior Partner.

lhe fimn's constitunion 1s govemed by our Parnership Agreement, This requires that certain issues are subject to a vaote of
pariners including the clection of the Managing Partner. the Senior Partner and the Paninership Council. Paniners also vote on
the admission of new partners, mergers or acqusitions and other major investments and changes to the Parinership Agreement
utsel€ Each paniner has a simgle vote, although on certain matiers {such as the arangements for remuncravion of equily partners)
paly equity partners are enhiled o vole

The EL G meets regutarly and 1s responstble for our strategy . the development of our competitive position. our relationshig with
clients, tmd and long-term business planning. the performance of the various parts of the Group, and its financial management.

The Partnerstup Council s an elected body chared by the Senior Partner and also currently comprising of six clected
counctl members as weli as one member apponted from outside the Group. The Partnership Council meets regularly in person
to reviess the effectneness of the Group's Jeadership and management The Partaership Council also ensures that appointments
ta leadership rolcs arc handicd effectvely and with due regard to the interests of the parinership.
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CLIFFORD CHANCL LLP
Fiancial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2423

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
Business review

““he results for the year ended 30 Aprit 2023 reflect another vear of growth for the firm For the first time mcome exceeded £2bn.
increasing 3% from £1.969m to £2.062m reflecting the continued trust and confidence of our chents and the qualiy and
commitment of our staff and partners.

The war in Ukraine. mitatiunary pressure and higher wtercst rates crealed a more uncertain econom:ic ens ironment and more
challenging market conditions for the legal industy However despite the resulung decline 1n transactional activigy  the firm
continued to deliver income growth. This reflects the well hedged nature of the firm's business model Revenue from our
Litigation & Dispute Resolution practice offset the impact of reduced demand for our transactional practice areas. Income grew
strongly in the 1 'k offsetung the more challenging market environment impacting Asia Pacilic and the Americas regions

Profit before tax and members' remuneration and prufit share was £793m, broadly in hine with the prior year

Reflecting increasing demand from our clients, we have continued to invest in the Pannership of the i Partner headcount
increased to 593 at 30 Aprit 2023 (2022: 563).

Cash at the vear-end was £232m {2022 £378m) The fim maintained strong cash reserves throughout the vear and did not
drawdown on its Resolving Credit Fazility (' R{OF ),

Net assels attributable to members excluding members mterests classified as habiltics. ncrcased 1o £53%im as at 36 April 2023
(2022 £341m).

Going concern
Having considered current and evpecied activity levels, together with cashflow forecasts fur the following twelve months from
the date of approval of the financial statemients and the avolability of the finms RCT the 21 (s has concluded that the Croup has

adequale resources 10 contimue m operations for the foresceable fulure Accordingly. the Group continues to adopt the going
concern basis of accountng i preparmg the financial statements

Financing
I'he Group 1s financed through a combmattion of members’ ovvn capital and vadisinbuted profits Additionally, a RCF of £150m

1s also available The amount of caputal per profit shaning unit 15 determined by the Partnership Agreement with reference to the
tuture requircments of the Group
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statemenss for the year ended 30 Apni 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
Members' capital and drawings

The term "panaer” in this Financial Staternents is used to refer to a member of Chifford Chance L1LP, or an employce or
consuliant with cquivalent standing and qualifications, or an individual with equivalent standing in one of the LLP's subsidiary
cntitics. Paniner can either be equity partner or non-¢quity partaer as per the partnership agreement The term “"Member” w this
document 1s used to refer anly to a member of the LL P

The partners who are not members of the .1 P receve remuneration on an cquivalent basis to members. Their remuneration 1s
presented m the Consolidated Income Statement under 'Staff and relared costs’. Remuneration which 15 not profit-related and
not discretronany that 1s paid 10 members, 15 treated as a charge against profit and 15 presented in the Consolidated Income
Statement under 'Members' remuneration charged as an expense’

Pariners arc pard a monthly drawing on account. in addition 10 the distribution of profit share Members' capital. which s
measured at cost is repay able within six months of relirement. and accordingly, is required to be classified as a liability Each
member contributes capital to the Group in accordance with the Partnership Agreement and in proportion 10 their profit-shanng
units The amount of capnal per prafit sharing unit is determined by the Partnershup Agreement with reference to the future
requirements of the Group.

Profit sharing

The Partnership Agreement of Clifford Chance LLP scts owl the basis for determining the profits avaitable for sharing between
equily pariners Such profits differ from the profits shown in these financial statements because different accounting policies are
applicd. and because the members of Chiford Chance Li P exclude centain equuy pariners and include certam partners who are
not equily parinets

Qualifying third party indemnity

I'he Group has pul in place. throughout the vear and at the ume of approvimg thesc financial statements qualify ing third party
wndemmity provistons for all the members olthe Group
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Statement of members® responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The members are responsible for preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regutation
Company law. as apphed to humited hability pannerships by the Limsted Liabiluy Partnerships (Accounts and Audit)
(Application of Compames Act 2006) Regulatiens 2008 (the "Regulations™). tequires the members to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the members have prepared the group and the LLP financial statemeats in
accordance with Uk -adopted international accounting standards.

Under company law. as apphed to limiied liability partnerships. members must not approve the financial statements uniess

they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state of affaurs of the group and LLP and of the profit or lass of the
group for that period. [n preparing the financial stalements, the members are required (o

select suable accounting policies and then apply them consistentiy,

state whether apphicable L'K-adopted mtemational accounting standards have been followed. subject 1o any materal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent. and

prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless 1t 15 Inappropriate to presume thai the group and L I.P
will continue tn business

The members are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and LLP and hence for taking reasonable sieps for the
prevenuion and detection of fraud and other ivepularics

The members are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s
and LLF’s wransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tine the financial position of the group and LLP and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
Inn 50 far as the members are avare
« There 15 no relevant audit information of which the L1 P's auditors are unaware and
+ Fhe members have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themacives aware of amv relevant audit
information and to establish that the audilors are aware of that informatior

Independent Auditors

The independent auditors of Clifford Chance 1LP are PrcewaterthouseCoopers LLP. who will be proposed for
reappaintment. PricewaterhouseCoopers | {.P have expressed their willingness to continue 1 office as imdependent auditors.

Designated members
The designated members durmg the year ended 30 April 2023 and subsequent to the year end are’
Charles Adams

David Harkness
Robin Abraham
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fmancial Statements for the year ended 30 Apni 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Streamtined Energy and Carbon Reperting (SECR} under The Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability

Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations, 2018

In accordance with the requirements of Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) under The Compantes (Directors'
Reporn) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Lnergy and Carbon Repon} Regulauons, 2018, below are the detasls for UK

locations. A list of members is available on the (ompanies House website

2023 2022

{ E:nergy Consumption used to calculate emissions k¥Wh 13377412 14,894,533

2 Emissions from combustion of gas 1C02¢ (Scope 1) 412 380

3 Emissions from combustion of fuel for ransport purposes & O2e (Scope 1) Not applicable  Not applicable

4 Emissions from business travel in ental cars or employee - owned vehicles where 2 -
Group is responsible for purchasing the fuel 1CO2e (Scope 3)

3 Lmissions from purchased electricaty 1CO2e {(Scope 2 locauon -based; 2.134 2,723

6 Total gross (CO2e based an above 2,568 3.103

T UK's FTE in Nos. 1.980 1.904

8 Intensity ratio: 1CO2¢ gross figure per employvee {{6) (7)) 130 | 63

Defraisused  Defrais used

tor all UK tor all UK

9 Mﬂhudolug)‘ CMISS10ns cmissions

calculations

10 Emissions from other activitics winch the Group ovwn ar contral includg operation of  Not applicable
facilnies 1CO2¢ (Scope 1)

11 Emissions from purchased clectncity 1CO2¢ (Scope 2. miarket - based factor) .

12 Ermissions from heat. sicam and cooling purchased for own use tCO2¢ 1 Scope 2) Not applicable

13 Emigsions from extraction and production of purchased matersals and fucls whichthe  Not appheable
Group docs not own or contral (Seope 3} /1CO%e

14 Enwssions fron use of sold products and services which the Group does not own or Mot applwable
control (Scope 1) 1CO2¢

15 Emissions from clectnony related to extrachion_praduction. and transportgtion of fuels — Not applicable
cansumed in the generation of electnicity which the Group does not own or control
(Scope 3)1CO2e

16 Fmissions from purchase of clectricity that 1s sold to an end user which the Group does Not apphcable
not awn or control (Scope 3) 1C0O2e

17 Cmissions from generawon of electricny that 1s consumed in a transmmssion and Not applicable
distnibution sy stem which the Group does net own or control (Scope 31/ '02¢

18 Emissions from transportation of purchased fuels which the Group does not own or Not applicable
control (Scope 3} 1CO2e

19 Frmssions from transportation of waste out of lnanctal £ operational control (Scope 3} 7 Not applicable

WOk

20 Lmigsions from transportation of sold products which the Group does nol own or Not applicable
control (Scope 3) ' 1CO2e

21 Ennssions from employ cc busiess travel wiich the Group does not own or ¢ontrol and 1420
where not responsible for purchasing the fuel (Scope 3) 11CO2e

22 L'nussions from employees commuting i and from v ock which the Group does not Not applicable

own or conlrol {Scope 3} 7 1CO2e
23 Enussions [rom leased assets, franchises and owtsourced activihes (Scope 3) '«"O2¢ - Not applhicable
24 Emissions from disposal of waste generated an operations whach the Group does not 635
ewn or control (Scope 3) 1CO2¢
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statemenis for the vear ended 30 April 2023

REFORT TO THE MEMBERS

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) under The Companies (Directors' Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations, 2018 {(continued)

2023 2022

25 Emissions from disposal of waste generated in production of purchased materials and Not applicable Not applicable

fuels which the Group dogs not owa or control (Scope 3)/iC02e

26 Emissions from disposal of sold products at the end of their hife which the Group does  Not applicable  Not applicable

not own or control (Scope 3) /1CO%e

27 Total gross Scope 3 emissions /1CO2e 2,057 705
28 Total gross Scope (. Scope 2 (location) & Scope 3 emissions / 1ICO2e 4625 3.808
29 Total gross Scope L. Scope 2 (market) & Scope 3 emissions /1CO2e 2469 .
30 Carbon offsets » tCO2e Not applicable Not applicable
31 Domestic Carbon Linns Not applicable  Not applicable
32 Total annual net enussions / 1CO2e (including location based scope 2enussions) 46235 3.808
33 Total annual net ermssions / 1CO2e (including Market based scope 2emissions) 2469 -
34 UK's FTFE 10 Nos 1,980 1.904
335 Addional mtensity rauo; 1CO2¢ net (igure per employee (including location 234 200

based scope 2emussions){(32)/ (34)}

36 Addwonal mntensiiy rato: 1CO2e net figure per eniployee (including Market 125 -

based scope 2enussionsyi33) / (34)]

37 Energy Efficiency Action:

bl

-

[z}

L+

COur enussions as set cut in the table above are higher than the previous vear which reflects an increase in wravel and a
return 1o office based working. Compared with the vear ended 30 April 2020, total annual net ermssions have fallen from
8,123 1C02¢ to 4,625 1CO2e. We continued to implement encrgy saving iniatives, as set oul below

We have started 10 refurbish the chillers by replacing the existing compressors with enhanced. highly efficient refrigerant-
cooled. vaniable speed drives (VSD). The chiller installanons are a very significant load factor for electricily usage and
energy consumption at London office. The strategy also considers the chilled water distnibubion systems m the building,
in combination 10 upgrades of the cooling towers equipment. to obtam funther energy reductions | stimated cnergy
savings until 2028 is 407 961 kWh:

W e have installed new Inverters on Toflet lixtract Fans  The estimated energy savings are $.037 KWh per year.

W e installed new inveriers on all three fans and the spray pump of coolmg rowver 6 1o be more energy efficient Durning a
2 week comparison of cooling tower 13 with no new inverters fitted. the energy savings were 2.341mWh.

We have also been monitering on floor enerey cansursption pattems and demand and have ctanged vanables on the
Building Management Sy stem {BMS | to operate binlding heating and ac to reflect occupancy levels, and

The Emergency staircase lighting has been replaced with - FDs and sensars 5o 15 no longer on 247
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Aprd 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

{n compliance with the Limited Liabifity Partnerships (Accounts and Audit} (Application of Companies Act
2006) Regulations 2008, as amcnded by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Climate-retated Financial Disclosure)
Regulations 2022,

. Introduction

As descrrbed 1 more detatl in the Strategy section, the Group does aot constder climate change to be a matenal firancal
risk 10 the business As a law firm our equssions are relauvely small, and our mfrastructore relatively secure The Group's
busiriess is well hedged and witist climate change and the (ransition 1o a jow carbon economy wifl affect our clients, we
do not envisage this reducing demand for our advice and services. provided the firm mamtains and builds its relevant
cxperuse Rather, the Group considers ciimate change refated advice and services as an area for potential growth.

The Group's comnutment to reducing emussions and to transparency oh progress is oriented 1o our values, and what our
stakeholders can expect of us. despite our operational enussions not having any malcnial impact on global GHG
crmssions The Group tracks tis climate change-related commutments through specific targets and objectives detailed n
this disclosure We also have policies and controls in place in respect of our business operation and supply chan that
speaifically address climate change and support our focus to decarbonise pur business.

The Group has a plan to reduce absolute Scope | and 2 GHG emissions 80% by 2030 from a base year of the vear ended
0 Apnik 2020 " FY26"). and 10 reduge absolute Scope 3 GHG emissions by 47% wittun the same timeframe In March
2022 the Groups near-term science=based targets for 2030 were independently assessed and validated as a key element to
aur longer-term aim of being net zero

e Group targets nel zero ambitmns while at the same ime seekmg to help our chents with theirs

The chent work the Group undenakes in relalion to chimate change 15 integrated mte the Group's regions and practice
arcas and 1s often an clement of a wider scope ol work Therefore, 1 15 not practical to quanuty separately the value of
work undenaken by the Group m relauon te clinate change

This disclosure descnibes the Group's co-ordinited approach 10 1ts own environmental footprnint ncluding decarbonising
our operatons and supply cham. and advisimg chients on chimate change and the energy ransiiion key management
groups with responsinlny for thys imclude

the Responsible Business Board ("RIB Board") that proposes and has oversight of the Group’s responsible business
stralegy . as approved by the Executive | caderslup Group ("ELG™)

the Global ESG Hoard that steers and co-ordinates the activities of the teams and lawyers advising chieits on LSG matters
mctuding climate change

Commonality of people on these Boards - including the same indis idual as Chair - helps to connect the approach of the
Group (o the risks and opportunitics that climate change presents

The Group uses a robust Enterpnise Risk Management Framework ("the Framework”). which s designed 10 address the
Iikelthaad and tmpact of nsks matenalismg The Framework tracks climate change-related risks

Dunng the year ended 30 Apnil 2024 (“IF'Y24"). the Group plans 1o tonduct a decper dive 1 relation to the fnancial
mpact of chimate-related 1ssues on nis business and assess the Group's financial expusure 10 ¢limate change (both nisks
and vpportunities). These nisks are already on the nish radar of the Group (see below) yet we recognise the value of 1aking
the opportunity o deepen the Group’s understanding of 1its potennial financial exposure to climate change (both risks and
npportuniies)

Jhe Group s a lounding member of the Net Zero Lawyers Alhance commituied te acceleratng the transition to Net Zero
v 2050
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 3u Apnil 2023

REPORT 1TO THE MEMBERS

1. Governance

In this section we define the governance structures for the assessment. management and escalation of climate refated matters and
describe the key executrve respensibilities in relation to climate management and how key decisions and actions are taken

The devclopment, implementation and compliance monstonng of our policies are managed through the General Counsel and
Compliance olfice, fed by the General Counsel and Chief Risk & Compliance Officer. who provide regular updates to the
Audit & Risk Comumitiee and both sit on the Responsible Business Board representing the Doing Business pillar of the Group's
responsible business strategy , alongside the Environment pillar lead of the Responsible Business Board who chairs the Group's
Net Zero Delivery Group

These roles and relationships are explained i more detail helow, but at a hugh [evel this shows the interconnectedness between
the diffcrent arms of the Group which address climate change

The Group has policies and controls in place in respect of our business operation and supply chain that specifically address
climate change and suppon our focus to decarbonise our business These include but are not limited 10 our Environment &
Energy Policy. our Climate Change Policy. our Globat Procurement Policy mnclusive of our Supplier Relationship Management
Framework and our Supplier Code of Conduct and Standards and cur Global Travel Policy.

Table 1: Bodies of the Group involved in / having responsibility for climate change-related risks and oppaortunities

GROLP OVERSIGHT DESCRIFTION GOVERNANCE ¢
REFORTING
ELG The (Group's oppertunities Has ultimate responsibiliny for the [Oversight from the

and risks strategy of the Group including the |Partnership Council
Group's responsible business
stralegy
Partoership Council ELG Reviews the perfermance of the

ELG and any other ssucs of
concem to the partnership
Reviews hoth the reponts of
Imemal Audit and the Group’s
accounts and monntors the Group’s
risk management precesses

A sub-commutiee of the
Partnerstup Council

Audu & Risk Commiltee The Group's tinancial

reporting and risks

Develops. implements and Partofhe ELG
monitors compliance with Group
Palicy and manages the Group's
Enterprise wide Risk Management
Framework

Sieering and convening the Group's
ESG-related expenence and
capabilities to provide ESG related
suppon 10 our chents

General Counsel’s Oflice and | The Group's risks

Risk & Compliance

Global ESG Board ESG-related opportunitics for

client work

RB Board

The Group's Responsible
Business siralegy

Propeses and has oversight over the
responsible business strategy of the
Group, as approved by the ELG

Reponis to the ELLG

Net Zera Delivery Group

The Group's Net Zero
lmplementation Plan

Recommends and manages the
Group's Road 1o Nel Zero

Imptlementation plan

Reports to the Group's RB
Board

FPags
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Finaneial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TG THE MEMBERS
2. Governance (contd.)
Global ESU Board

In 2019 the Group created a cross-disciplinary Globa! ESG Board, drawn from partners and senior colleagues across our Group
who arc expens m and working on ESG-related topics The role of the Global £5G Board 15 steenng and convening our
experience and capabiliiies in relation 10 our ESG client work, which includes aspects of chimate change such as strategic
advice and planming, carbon wrading and project investment, regulation ang compliance. investment, financing and due
difigence. smtemational obligations, and trade and lugauon The Giobai ESG Board therefore has an important role in
wlentifying and considening climate related opportumitics ansing from climate related workstreams

Climate Change Policy

The Group has a Climate Change Pulicy that 1akes climate change issues inlo consideration in our matier acceptance policies [n
accordance with 1he goals of the Pans Apreement on Limiting climate change and the Glasgow Chimate Pact, the Group
acknowledges that any such assessment needs to consider the level of development and specific needs of vulnerable countries
In most cases where a new mader polentiaily has a matcrial and adverse impact on chmate change issues. we will assess
whether these are suffictent mitigating/compensating grounds to take on the maticr In this way. the Climate {hange Policy acts
1o wenafs work which might be high nish from a4 climate change perspective and draws these climate-related nsks to the
attention of parners when considering whether to tahe on 2 new matter. As well as accordmg with the Group's values. this
process assists in managing the poienbial nisks o the Group's business in terms of reputation. staff retention and impact on
winning other busimess

Emvironment & Energy Policy

The Group has an Environment & Fnersgy Policy that takes mto consideration the decarbomisation of our business opesations
and prnvides visibihity of the actions we need 10 take as an organisation (o mimnuse our envwonmental impacy and fulfil the
seience-hased targets commitments we basy ¢ made

Responsible busuess sirgreg)

‘The Group's responsible business sirategs  swhich comprises four pillars: Domg Business. People Community & Pro Bono and

of most relevance in this context - the Environment. s overseen by the BB Board The RB3 Board. comprising partners and
semior directors who mclude pemanent and co-opted members of the ELG. meets at least quarterly 1o review progress and
discuss strategic imtiatives  Uns weluded the deselopment of the Group's Net Zcro stralegy and monitonng progress

The Net Zero Delivers Group. which repons directly mto the RB Board. 1s responsible for the delivens of our Net Zero
Programme mclusis e of our pear-tenm science-based targets and will report on climate change risk and opportunity The Net
Zero Delivens Group takes a global approach and compnises pillar leads and represeniatives from across our Group The chair
ol Nea Zers Delivery Group 15 the Deputy Co-Chair of the Responsible Business Doard and Ieads the Cnviconment pillar of the
Group's responsible business strategy The Co-Lead of the Glabal Markets Chents and Products Commuitee of the ELG and
the Group's Executive Pantner & General Counsed also sit on the RB Beard and are the bndge between the RB Board and the
FLG

The focus areas for the Net Zero Programme mclude business emissions. travel emissions. supplier emussions and lawyer
engagement 1o supporl delveny of our environmental commitments. Amongst other things we beleve that our focus on
emtssiony reduction pre-empts regulation and global events whiclk will increase or even prevent use of fossi] fuels

To add 10 and 1mprove rish management pracuces related to chimale change, duning P24 the key arcas of focus of the Group's
Net Zero Detinvers Group, workinz with Operatons. Rish and Compliance and other relevant stakeholders, wall be

+ Mectrics assessicg the financial impact of climate change: canstder the appropriateness ol traching speetfic financral metrics.

+ Integrating climate risk tnto the Framework: While we have had a dedicated nisk register on climate nishs as part of e
I ramevark lor some tme. we ntend tn funher enlance and expand the repister. with more stakeholder chgagement and a
greater focus on ownership and acceuntability

*  Analysing the resilience of the business modcl: as explavied above and helow  our qualitative assessment 15 that the Group's
business model 1s restlient to chimale change We will complete a more detaled Group wide analysis in anticipation of FY24
annual repan
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CLIFFORD CHAMNCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

2,

Gorvernance {contd,)

We recogmise that by implementing these recommendations. the Group will strengthen s nsk management practices related to
climate change. This will enhance understanding. accoumability and deciston-making processes. while demonstraung a
proactive approach towards addressing climate-related risks

Ecol adis offers third-party suppori and validauen of the Group's nansition efforts

The Group has partnered with EcoVadis to help monitor the sustainability perfermance of the Group and its suppliers against a
globally recognised methodology aligned to the UN Global Compact. Inmernational Labour Organisation, Global Reporting
Inaus e and 1SO260600. The monitoring through EcoVadis, which requires the Group and its supphiers to provide evidence to
support revtew and assessment, validates the progress that the Group is making year-on-year The output of the sustamabihiny
assessment includes a ‘corrective aclion plan’, which enabled the prioritisation of actiuns during the year ending 3¢ Aprii 2323
1o support continuous improvement efforts.

The Group has used the outputs of the reviews ta inform discussions with supplicrs. as well as provide transparency around
steps that ;clude but arc not limited to more detailed reporting on the Group s Responsible Business website Supply chain
engagement is crucial to the Growp achieving its Environmental. Social and Governance commitments. acknowledging that
66 of our scope 3 emissions reside with our purchased goods and services category

The partnership with EcoVadis allows the Group to work alongside supphers to help supplier to reduce their negaine
enviwonmenlal and social impacts, whilst altowing us to fulfil our long-term ambition of becoming net zero

Some core initiatives include:

Setting near-term science-based largets for 2030 as a key elenwent 1o our lenger-term commmimient 10 reach net-zere giobal
emissions by 2030 al the latest.

Creaung highly sustainable workplaces, with recent examiples including aur Perth, $ydney, Singapore and Dubm oflices

Co-Founding the Net Zero Lawyers Alhance. in a venture that brings fogether the legal industry 1o make collaboratne efforts
tonards. and share best practice on. the transition

Driving sustainable change through our Cornerstone lmitiative, which ams to improse wellbeing in the poorest communities 1
Kigali. Rwanda

In 2022 EcoVadis recogmsed Chiford Chance with a Gold Meda! status. placmg Clifford Chance in the top 5% of ali
busimesses assessed by CeoVadis and the top 2% oF those Groups assessed sathun the legal and accounting services sector

Strategy
Clnnate change-related risks

As descnbed in section 4 below. the Group's nsh identification process identified chimate change as an emerging business nsk
mn 2021 Energing nsks are tracked and reviensed regalarly by the central nsk team and discussed with the ELG and the Audut
& Rusk Commiuttiee Until nov. on resiew 1t has not been considered a material financial risk 1o the business As such. 1t will
continue W be momitored and reviened as described n this disclosure both as part of the emerging risks and separatels mn its
own right as part of the regular revien of the Climate rish register In any event. there are reputational risks thal nught anse
from a failure to achiey e the Group’s own enussions reduction targeis of non-comphance with our policies, which the Group is
focussed on avoiding through the mechanisms that this disclosure explains

Clunate chang: -related opportitics
Advisory scrvices related to climate change and the energy fransition

As desceribed above. the Group has a Global I'SG Board and has also launched an | nergy Iransition [nitiative that focuses on
legal advice for arcas mecluding renewable energy  carbon caplure and storage. clean hivdregen: encrgy storage. FV charcin?

rransnssion and terconnection. cachon trading and unvestment and new nuclear  1he Group regularly advises chents cn
chimate change regulauon, the Just |ransition and Transiton Plannimg and sustamnable finance. These mitiatives fonn pant of
the Graup's strategy to ensury the Group 1s well positioned 1o senve chieats i relation 1o climate change. The Group does not.
however treat chimale change as a separale profit centre. and docs nol separatzly monitor revenue from clenate related work
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fnancial Statements for the yvear ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
3. Strategy (contd)

Partnering

We behieve that it 1s impertant that Chiford Chance. as a leading law firm, shows leadership in relation to climate change. but
that such leadership 15 giso imporiant for pur credibidity with chents m relation to climate-related work The two climate change:
rciated imnaiives below are key examples of tins

+ Chiford Chance 15 2 founder member of the Net Zero Lawyers Alliance {INZLA) and the Legal Sector Task Force within the
Sustamable Markets Inthative {5MI1}

« The NZLA commits to support the goal of Nei Zero greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by 2050 or sooner, s Jue with global
cfforts to hmit wamiing to 1 5°C (Net Zero)

+ The SMI was launched by Kimng Charles 1) 1 s former role as His Royal Highness The Prnce of Wales at The World
Leonomic Forurm in January 2020 to mobilise business and finance l¢aders to acceleraie the transition lo a net-zero world. The
SMI has formed industny -specific, CLOxlevel Task Forces to drive posstive change lo protect people and planet from the threats
of chmate change. including suppurting nature's brodiversity  The Group agreed 1o be a foundimg member of the Sustainable
Markets Imtiatis ¢ Legal Task Foree (I TI') The Group's Seruor Paniner represents the Group as a member of the LTE,

Also reics anl 10 the Group's reputaion 15 the Group's communily and pro bono work, which include and target climate change-
focused minatives |or nstance. the CliTord Chance Foundation has provided grant funding of £300.000 1o support Save the
Chifdren's engagement with the {mited Natwns Green Chmate | undg and, specifically. the development of s application for
fanding of grer USS 20 mulion to build the resibence n particular of women and children in the face of chmate change across
five coastal districts of Sierra | cone

Climate change-related training and trends

We invest sigmlicant ume in research witemal tranmng. chient traming. sennnars and writien briefings focussed on the energy
transition and associated arcas such as carbon trading  Vhe process of inming events and draftimg and publishing reports and
bricfings on ¢limate change 1ssues, trends and regulatony des dupments supperts and enhances the Group's knowhow and
awareness of these topres. and so our abitity o win and exceute chent mandates

4. Risk management

As part of the finms £ RM process the central (eam carnies out a formal horizon stanning exercise wihiere mtenial stahehofders

subject maiter expents and the Group's leaderstip are engaged to identify key nsks relevant to our business This includes use of
miemal sunvess. workshops and tescarch conducted by the nish eam based on external publications and rehable sources

Climate change was dentiffed as an cowrging nisk ag part of this process and a rish regisier dedicated to Climate-related risks
was developed in 2021 which idenufied physieal and transition nisks in broad terms, together with controls and mnigations.

As part of the Group's reporting structure. all emergmg risks are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee and the {'xecutrve
{.eadership Group pertodically Climate change was discussed as an emerging risk with the Audit Risk Commuttee 1s September
2021. the conclusion of which was thai the nisks wdenufied were not financially matcrial Lo the Group's business as a law firm

Some climate related risks are identified and assessed through our business conimuity management processes Operational
resilience and busingss continutty 1s a standng item on the agenda of the Group's Operaitons and Business Transformation
Committee. co-chaired by members of the ELG

Climate change risk will continue to be momiered as part of the Group’s LRM process

Whlst the Group's ability 10 meet and progress towards its climate change commitments does net currently represent a malersal
financial resk it represents & rish o our reputation and therclore our progress requares w0 be monitorcd  Our progress towards
the Group s near teon seence-based tarpets for 2030 as a key clement to our tonger term commituenl o reach net-zero global
enussions by 2050 at the latest are detatled i the objecuves and metnics below
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the 1 sar ended 30 Apnil 2023
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
5. Metrics and targets
Climate change related risks

The Group does not currently have detailed financial-related metnics for climale change nshs and as descubed above will
consider whether such metrics could be developed and what they would measure dunng FY24

Climate change-related opportiniites

We consider trends and themes that we anticipate seeing 1n the mediem term and ensure that our teams are developing skillsets
in the high-end areas of climate change-related legal expertise that our clients require and that we expect to conlinue 1o grow
We do not currently track what percentage of the Group's revenue stemns from climate change-related services We are however
increasingly offering climate change-related legal services (see above) The Group will explore whether 1t can track and report
the revenue generated by this work in the Group's annual report for the year ended 30 Apnl 2024

Table 2. A review of our GHG emissions FY23 v FY20

Category Emissions (1C02e) Emissions (tCO2e) % change (+ /-)
FY23 FY20 (validated by SBTimn FY22) Ey20t0 FY 23

| Direct Emissions 73900 1.304 00 =33%

2 Indireet Emissions o
(Location-Based) 7.541 39 8.602 00 -12%

2 Indirect Emissions (Market- 115407 3.869 00 e
Based)

| + 2 {l,ocalion-Based) 8.280 39 9.906 00 -16%

1 + 2 (Market-Based} 3.893.07 5.473.00 -25%,

3 Other indirect Emissions 94.958.04 126.521 36 -25%

| +2 (Location-Bascd) + 3 103.238 43 136,427 36 -24%

| + 2 (Market-Based) + 3 98,851 11 131.694 36 -25%,

Supphv Chawn (Scope 3)

Our sustamable procurement programme for the reporting period has focused on measuring the sustamabiliny and carbon
performance of our key supphers. wiich has seen a 16% reduction m our purchased goods and senices calegon enussions
agamst an I Y20 baseline. For the year ending 30 April 2023 we have been able o use suppher speaific enussions factors Lo
help reduce our reported emissions. however, we have also noted a heavy reliance on spend data still where supplicr ennssions

have not been provided

Te suppon eftective decarbon’sation of our supphy cham. we are seehing ty expand our engagement with our suppilers as part
of our programune to support suppliers (0 take positne steps tewards measuning their carbon reduction and setiing science-
based targets, including providing metrics through LeoVadis The manuonng through FeoVadis provides. through vahidation
the practical steps that our supphers are tahmg to mmmuse their cnvronmental impact It also provides visibiluy of low
environment scores and supports corrective action planming and censultation with supphiers to suppon direes and indirect GHG

enussions yeduction.
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORY TO THE MEMBERS
5, Metrics and targets (contd.)

Supply Chaun (Scope 3} (comd)

The percentage make-up of our purchased goods and services category within scope 3 has increased in the year ending 30 April
2023 from 59 3% 10 66% even though we've been able to reduce cur overall supply chain emissions for the ceporting period by
16% This has demonstrated a preater reliance on third parties by the Group. Whiist there are benefils of use of third parties,
we know that rehiance on them can expose the Group 10 the risk of our suppliers’ management and infrastructure. It increases
the complexity of risk management. as it is inherently difficult to understand the processes, procedures and inner workings of
our suppliers and can introduce the types of risk to which the Group may not have previously been exposed. This includes. but
15 not Linuted to. concentration risk, location risk. legal and / or jurisdiction risk. noting that the supplier may be opetating in
high-risk countries  Through our sustainable procurement and supplier management programmes. we're focused on enhancing
our supplier risk managemeat approack and in FY 24, as part of the procurement of new tools, focused on coumry, industry and
country Tisk assessment, we're hoping to review global or regional economic disruption arising from the impact on sectors with
supphy chains that are heavily concentrated in areas of high physical risk.

As part of our commitment we have s¢t a goal that our top 50 purchased goods and services suppliers (by emissions) set | 5
degree aligned science-hased targets 10 reduce their own climate impact and will achieve a 30% reduction by 2030, We
acknowledge that thrs requires regular engagement with our suppliers through our sustainable procurerient programme and
have prionitsed targeted acuon to support data caplure in LcoVadis. Moving away from data caplure using spend data to actual
cnussions data will aiso help 1o support more accurate data capture and minimise any reputational damage through us not
achiey ing our targels

| ower travel as a result of the Pandemic. has led 10 2 79% reduction in Business Travel against the FY 20 baselhine. This 15 not

susiainable in the longer term and we will plan to implement a "Responsible Travel” campaipn 10 ensure compliance with
travel policies and communicale the tmpact of our cmaconmental largets

Table 3. Qur business travel and supplier management targets

QOverall Farget Business Travel Goals Supplier Management Goeals Impact
Our annual commumentt for |- 40% reduction m - Top $0 supphers with seta 15 |- Ahgned to 1 5C (which s
Scope 3 from FY20 reduces  [mitemational thghis and Tong- [degree ahgned 5B 1 and will key for a Net Zero pathway )
by 47% by 2030 haul flights by 2030 achieve a 50%0 reduction by 2030
- Fhght emussion factors 1o be| Next level down - nest 50 - Remaining emissions in
reduced by 8% by 2030 supplicrs with hugh subnussiens (2030 74.7711CO2e

will be mnated 1o Sustainable
« Reduce ennssions from taxis| Procuremien! Programmc with a
by 25% by 2030 30% reduction by 2030
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financiai Sratements for the y ear endec 33 Aprd 1023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

5. Metrics and targets (contd.)

Chart 1. FY20 to FY 23 - change in total emissions (market based)

BT

. -25%

1KY

ol

Thousands tCQle

¥

Seope |

Scope 2 (market based)

Y13

B Scope 3

Bused on FEA data from the IEA (2022) Finissions Juctes A rights reserved, av modificd by Clifford Chance

LLP.

Table 4. Progress versus 30 April 2023 climate change-related targets set by the RB Board and approved by the ELG

Target

Key Performance Indicator

Performance

Ta reduce the Group's absolute GHG enuissions
from our FY 20 baseline to achies ¢ our near-lerm
targets (80°0 reduction for scope 1 and 2 and
47°%, reduction for scope 3) by 2030 Scope | &
2 emissions reduced by 7 3% (year on year
ascrage) - Scope 3 enussions reduced by 4 2%
(ycar on year average)

Near-term 2030 science-based target
implementation plan created and
commumicated across the Group
* Science based targets reviewed
ensure all reles ant enmission sources
are bemg measured
+ Total enussions gencrated in 1CO2¢e
- Scope 1 -1CO2e
- Scopc2 1CO2e

Scope3 CO2e

See separate 1able above

To support the work of environmental NGOs
through pro bono assistance and grants from the
Chfford Chance Foundation

Percentage number and amount ol our
pro bono and commumty outreach
mandates. and Chfford Chance
Foundation grants that coniribute 10
the achiesement of the Sustamable
Detelopmett Goals relaung to the
environment

Opened 19 environment related pro
bono mandates

We ha e long-term relatinnships
with 12 pro bono and community
partners | here are 17 prozects
swithin these relationships with an
emvircamental focus

7o paricipate in recogrised extemal forums to
inform and support our near-term 2030 science-
based target commitment

Nuniber of extemal forums attended

7 x forums {Net Zero Lawyers
Alhance. Sustainable Marhets
Iniative. CIPS Procuremment
Tutures. I egal Poresight Sumnit
Moving Bevond, EcoVadis Sustam,
Legal Sustainability Alhance)
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
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REFPORT TO THE MEMBERS

5. Mietrics and targets {contd.}

Table 4. Progress versus 30 April 2023 climate change-related targets set by the RB Board and approved by the ELG

(contd.)

Target

Key Performance Indicator

Ferformance

To raise internal and external aw areness and
involvement in our environmental and energy
policies to support the delivery of our near-term
2030 scicnce-based target commiment

Percemage of employed engaged
and/or trained
* No of Campaigns

We have progressed training for our
sustaimable procurement programme
and have a plan in place to support
raming ' upskill for our Sourcing
team and Contract Managers /
Owners 5 x cchorts (50
participants) have been run for our
SRM Leaming Programime, which
includes, but is aot hmited to,
sustainabiliy

2 (World Environment Day and
Earth Hour)

To leverage our Sustainable Procurement
Programme to understand our supphers’ mdirect
and direct GHG emissions and to use the puiputs
from independent verification and analysis to
report and reduce our scope 3 eitussions and
collaboration with our supply chain. fulfil cur
near-ierm 2030 science-based target commutmient

+ %o Key suppliers takimg action on
encrgy consumpuion & GHGs

+ % heey suppliers that have waste
management procedures in place

» g Koy supplicrs reporting on energy
consumption & GtiGs

%o Key supphiers signed up to
Screnee Based Targets Iniiative

« % Koy supplices that have
acknowledged our Supplier Cade

« No». of Supplicrs Engaged (Global)

* Total emissions generated” in (CO2Ze:
-Scope | -1CC2

Scopa2 1CQ2e

Scope3 tCO2e

83% of our key supphers are taking
aclhion on energy consumption &
GHGs

83%s of our key suppliers have waste
management procedures in place
67% of our key suppliers are
reporting on ¢nergy consumption &
GHGs.

45% ol our key suppliers have
signed up to Science Based Targets
Initiativ e

100 % ot our key supplicrs have
acknow ledged our Supplier Code
66 of our key suppliers have been
rated through FeoVadis so far. with
27 assussments in progress

Scu separate lable ahove

Report 10 the members. the streambined energy and carbon report and task force on climate-related financial disclosures are sipned
on behalf of the Executive Leaderstup Group by

Char Patrick Glyd,
Managing Partner Chief Financial Officer
1) July 2023 1 July 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Clifford Chance LLP

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinicn
in our opinion Clittord Chance LLP's group financial statements and LLP financial slalements (the financial slalements™y

~ give a true and fair view of the siate of the group's and of the LLP's affa rs as al 30 April 2023 and of the group's piofil and the group’s and
LLP’s cash flows for the year lhen ended

+ have been properly prepared in actordance with UK-adopled international accouniing standards as applied in accordance with lhe
provisions of lhe Companies Act 2008, and

» have been preparec n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as app ed to limited liability partnerships by lhe
Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) {Application of Cempanies Act 2008) Regu alions 2008.

We have audited the financial slatements, ncluded within the Financial Stalements (ihe “Annual Report™), which comprise. consolidated and
hmeted lability partnership balance sheets as at 3¢ Agnl 2023, consolidated income statemenl. consolidaled statement of comprehensive
income, consalidated and hm led -abi-ly parinership stalemants of changas in squilty and ¢onsolidated and limited fiability parinership cash flow
siatements for the year then ended. and the notes to the faancal slataments, which include a descripton of the significant accountag policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with ntemalional Standards on Audiung (UK} {(1SAs (UK}™) and applicable law Our respoasibililies under
ISA5 {UK) are furiher descnhed in the Auditors' responsib ities for the aud | of the financial statemenls sechion of our report Ve beheve that the
audit evidence we have oblained s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our epinion

Independence

we remained ndependent of the group in accordance with the elh cal requirements that ara relevanl to ow audil of the financial statements in
the UK, which includes the FRC s Ethica Slandard, and we have fulfiled our other eihical respaasibities in accordance with these

requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identfied any material uncerainlies relating to evenis or concilons that, indiidually or
collectively. may cast significanl doutt on the group’s and the LLP's ability io continue as a gong concern for a period of al leasl twelve months
from when (he financial slatements are authonsed for 1s5u¢.

In audwing the financial slatements, we have concluded that the members’ use of the going concem basis of accounbing n the preparaben af the
financial statemenls is approprate

However, because nol all future events or conditions can be predicted, Lhis conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the LL P's abiity
lo conlinue as a going concern.

Gur responsibiblies and the responsibdities of the members wilh respect lo going concem are described in the relevant seclions of this repon
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Clitiord Chance LLP (continued)

Reporting on other information

The cther information comprises all of the information n the Annual Repon ather 1han the financ:al statemenls and our audilers report thereen
The members are responsible for the othar informabon Dur opinion on the financial statements does nol cover the siher informat on and
accordingly wa do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance thereon

In connection with aur audil of the financial statements, our respensibility is (o read the ather information and, in doing so. consider whether the
athar nfermation 1s materally incongistent with the financial statemenis or pur knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwse appears to be
materially misstated I we identify an apparent malerial inconsislency or matarial misstalement, we are required 1o perform procedures 10
conclude whether there 5 a matenal missiatement of the financial statemenls ¢ a malanal misstaleament of he other nformalion If, based on
the work we havs parformed we conclude that there is 2 matenal nnsstatement of this other informahon we are required 1o report thal facl We
have nolhing to report based on these responsiblit es

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the members for the financial statements

As explained more fully n the Statement of members’ respansibilities n respect of Lhe financial statements, the members are respgnsible for the
preparation of the financiai slatements i aczordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied thal they gve a true and far view
The bers are also responsible for such inlenal conlrol as lhey delermine 15 necessary to enable the preparat o= of financal statements that
are free from malenal msstatement. whether due (o fraud or error

In preparing Ihe financial slatemenis, the members are respensible fo- assessing the group's and the LLP s abibly lo conbinue as a gong
concemn, disclosing, as apphcable malters relaled ta going concern and using lhe going concerm basis of accounling unless the members either
aniend 16 hquidate lhe group of the LLP or lo cease operal urs or have no reahkshic alternative but to do so

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are lo oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statéments as a whola are Fae from material misslatement
whether due Lo fraud or error, and to 1Ssue an auditors report thal includes our opinicn Reascnable assurance is  high level of assurance, bul
15 nat a guarantee that an audn conducted in accordance with SAs (UK) will always delect a maierial misstatement when o exists.
Misstaterments ean a~se {rom fraud or eror and are cons dered matenal of, individually or in the aggregale. lhey could reasonably be expecied o
influence (he econom © decisicns of users taken on lhe basis of ihese financial slalements

Inggulanties, including fraud. are nstances of non-compliance wilh laws and regulations We design progedures in line wilh our respon sibikties,
outned above. to delact matenal misstalements in respect of irregulanilies, including fraud The exlent to which our procedures sre capable of
detecling imegulanties, ncluding fraud. is detailed below

Based on our underslanding of the group and indusiry we dentified thal the principal risks of non-compliance weh laws and regulat ons refaled
to Solicitors Regulation Authority regulation. and we i d the extent Lo which non-compliance might have a material etfect on the financial
slatements We also considered those laws and regulalions that have a direct impact on the financial slatermenls such as the Companies Acl
2006 a= applled to limited Habsity partnerships (Accownls and Audil} (Application of Companies Act 2006} Regulations 2008 We evaiuated
management's moentives and opporfunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial stalements (including the rsk of ovemde of controls),
anhd determ ned that the pnngipal nsks were relaled o posting of inapproprale joumal entries {0 manipulale atcounting records, ovemiding
ratevant conlrols to prepare Ihcomrect financia information and managemenl bias in accounting estimates Audil procedures performed by the
engagement team ncuded:

« Eva uation of the design of managemeni's conirais designad fo preveni and delect iregulanires,
« Review of all internal audt reports issuad lo the Audil and Risk Commiliee which highlighled any issves with respecl [0 polenbal fraud.

- D'scussion with managemenl the Chef Risk and Comphance Officer and the Head of Legal, including consideration of known ar
suspected instances of hon-comphkance with law and regulations and fraud,
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Independent auditors’ report to the meiibers
of Clifford Chance LLP (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial staternents {continued)

- Ghallenge of assumplions and udgemenls made by managemenl In respect of significant accounling estimates, and
+ Testing unusual or unexpected journal enlries, pan culary those impacling revenue.

There are inherant limitations n the audi procedures described abouve. We ara kess kkely to become aware of inslances of non-comphance with
laws and regulateons thal are not closely related 1o events and transaclions reflected in the financial statements. Also. the sk of not delectng a
material misstatement due lo fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting gne resulting from error as raud may invelve deliberate concealment
by, for exampie, forgery or intentional misrepresentations or through collusian.

A furher descrption of our responsibiies for lhe audit of lhe financial statemenls s localed on the FRCs websile al
www.[rc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilil es This description forms part of our auditors’ repont

Use of this report

This repor, including the opinons, has been prepared for ang only for the members of he padnership as a body in accordance with the
Companmes Act 2006 as apphed lo hmited liabiity partnersh ps by the Limitad Liabibly Partnerships (Accounts and Audi) (Applicatian of
Compames Act 2006) Regulat ons 2008 and for no other purpose We do nol n giving these rpinions accept or assume respensibility for any
clher purpose of to any olher person lo whom this report 1s shown or inly whose hands il may come save where sxpressty agreed by our pnor
consent in wriling

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 as apphcabie lo imited | ablily pannerstups we are required to repart 12 you { in siur opiaics

* we have ncl oblained all ihe information and exptanations we require for our audit, or
« adequale accounling records have not baen kept by the LLP - relums adequale for gur aud | have nol been recaived Irom branches not

visiied by us; or
+ the LLP financial slatemenis are not in agreemeanl with the accounting records and relums

We have no exceplions (o repon ansming from this responsibilily

Gilly Lord {Senior Statutory Auditer)

for and on behalf of PncewalerhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Slalulory Auditors
London

It

July 2023
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 30 April Note 013 2022
Em £m
fresiated)*
Revenue 4 2042 1,969
Other aperating income 3 3
Operaling costs
Staff and related costs 5 (964} {869)
Other operaling cosls (273 (268)
Net impawment losses on financial asseis 26 (14) (20}
Operating profit §H4 s1s
Finance income 3 3
Finance cosls 24) {21}
Finance costs - net 8 (21) {18
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND MEMBERS' REMUNFRATION AND 293 797
PROFIT SHARE
Members remuneraljon charged as an espense 9 20) (18
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AVAILABLE FOR PROFIT SHARE AMONG
MENMBERS & 773 779
Income lay expense 10 [ER0) (40)
PROFIT FOR TIHE FINANCIAL YF AR AN AL ABLF FOR PROFIT 741 739

SHARE AMONG MEMBERS

The results detrive from continumg operations

* Refer note 28 for restatement ol previous year financial statements for reasons explamed in that note
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fmanuizl Statements for the year ended 31 April 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOVME

Year ended 30 April Note 2023 2022
£m fm
{resiated)*

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR AVAILABLE FOR PROFIT
SHARE AMONG MEMBERS 742 739

Irems that will not be reciassified subsequently to the Consolidated Income

Statement
Actuaral gamn on defined benefit pension scheme H 17 174
Deferred tan charge refating to stems not reclassified I . 1+

Items thar may be reclassified subsequenth to the Cansohdai d Income Starement

Net foreign eachange differences recogised witlun reserves 24 34 49
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 51 123
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 793 862

* Refer note 238 for restatement of pres :eus vewr financial statements for reasons explained i that note
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLF
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Aprd 2023

CONSCLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Asatl
As at 30 April Note 2023 2022 May 2021
£mt £m fm
{resiated)®  (restated)®
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 13 73 65 72
Right-of-use assets 27 453 329 it
finance lease receivable - non-curment Z7 70 98 120
Deferred Lax assel 19 I 1 51
Totul Non-Current Assets 597 493 554
Accrued income 26 376 369 Jos
Trade and other receivables [ ] 601 520 437
Finance lease receivable - curent 27 24 24 23
Amounts due from members 16 B7 81 38
Cash and cash cquivalenlis 17 232 178 70
Total Current Asscly 1,320 1,372 1,243
TOTAL ASSETS 1,917 1,865 1,797

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payvables 18 506 492 457
['mploy ec benefit obligations 20.21,22 8 21 21
Provisions 20 - 1 2
Lease Labihiy - current 27 91 Q4 a7
Members camial - current 23 28 31 31
Total Current Liahilitics 643 639 598
t mploy ee benefit cbhgations 202122 207 266 429
Provisions 20 39 34 28
[ easc fratnkity - on-gurrent 27 343 461 475
Members® capital - non-current 23 86 L1 126
Total Non-Current Liabilities 877 892 1.058
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,520 1531 1,656
TOTAL EQUITY 397 334 141
Total Liabilitics Eaxcluding Ylembers' Tnterests Classified As Liabilities 1,358 1,324 1425

Net Assets Of Mlembers Excluding Members® Interests Classified As

I.isbilitics 24 5589 41 372
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year caded 30 Apnl 2023

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Agatl
As at 30 April Note 023 2022 May 2021
£m £m £m

frestated)®  (restated)*

REPRESENTED By :

Provision for annuities due to current members 20.22 48 65 T4
Members' capital - cortent 23 28 3t 31
Members' capital - nen-current 23 86 11 126
Members' interests classified as habihties 162 207 231
Reserves 397 134 141

559 541 372

Total members' interests:

Amounls due from members 16 (87) 8h (88)
Provision for annuities due 10 current members 20,22 48 65 b
Members' capital - current 23 28 31 31
Members' capital - non-current 23 86 11 126
Reserves 3197 334 141
472 460 284

* Refer note 28 for restatement of previous year financial statements for reasons explamed 1 that note

The financial statements on pages 19 to 69 have been approved by the members aind were signed on V3 July 2023 by Chatles
Adams, designaled member

Charles Adams
Chfford Chance L I P
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fmnancia! Statements for the year ended 31 Apri] 2023

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP BALANCE SHEET

Asat}

As a1 30 April Note 2023 022y 2021
£fm £m £m

frestated)®  (restated)®

ASSETS

Invesimenls 12 225 225 5
Property, plant and equipment 14 14 i2 9
Right-of-use assels 27 122 125 120
Finance lease recervable - non-current 21 69 91 107
Total Non-Curreni Assets 430 453 241
Accrued Income 26 162 163 136
Trade and other receivables i3 660 529 478
Finance lease recervable - current 27 17 17 17
Cash and cash equivalents 17 96 138 136
Tgtsl Current Assets 935 847 767
TOTAL ASSETS 1,365 1,300 1,008

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 18 392 592 592
Amwunts due to members 16 35 36 7
Employee benefit shligatiens 20.21,22 15 19 18
Prosisions 20 - 1 2
| ease hatilily - current 27 46 45 44
Members' capual - current 23 28 31 31
Total Current Liabilities 716 724 694
1 mplay ee bencfi ubligations 26.21.22 193 248 138
Provisions 20 28 44 17
Lease liabihiy - nun-current 27 220 239 276
Members’ capital - nen-current 23 86 111 126
Total ~von-Current Liabilities 527 662 587
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,243 1,386 1,251
TOTAL EQUITY 122 {86} {243)
Total Liabilities Excluding Certain Members' Interests Classificd As o
Liabilities" 1.087 1,188 1,029

“et Assets/(L.iabilitics) Of Members Excluding Certain Mcembers'

Interests Classified As Liabflities 24 278 112 21
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Apnil 2023

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP BALANCE SHEET

Asatl
As at 30 April Note 2023 2022 Mav 2021
£m £fm £m

frestated)*  (restated)*
REPRESENTED BY:

Provision for annuities due to current members 20.22 42 A1) 65
Members' capital - current 23 28 3t 31
Members' capatal - non-current 23 86 111 126
Members' interests classified as hiabilwies 156 198 222
Reserves 122 (86) (243)
278 112 (21)
Total members' interests:
Amounis dug Lo members Lnot capital in natuse)” 16 33 36 7
Pros iston for anmnties due to curreni members 20,22 42 36 a3
Members' capital - current 23 28 H 31
Members' capital nen-current 23 86 i 126
Resenes 122 (86) (242)
31 148 (14

As permitied by Section 408 of the Companics Act 2006. the LLP has not presented its own income statement A profit of £648m
(2022 £377m (restated)) is included within the financial statements of the LLP.

* Refer note 28 for restalement of previous year financial statements for reasons explained in that note

# In presenung the Limited Liablity Pannership Balance Sheet. total liabilities are also presented excluding those members'
wmterests which as per accounting standards arc classifed as liability but which we regard as capital in nature

['he financial statements on pages 19 to 69 have been approved by the members and were signed on { Z Juty 2023 by Charles
Adams. designated member

Charles Adams
Clifford Chance l 1 P
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Bafance as at { May 202
Restatement adjustment {note 28)
Balance as at 1 May 2021 (restated)

Profit for the financial year available
for profit share amoang members®

Other comprchensine income for the year*

Total comprehensive mcemie for the
year

Profit dsstnbutions and related tax

{ tange 1a provision far anntities
Change i1 members' capital (note 23)
Ralance as at 30 Apnil 2022

Profit for the financial vear available

for profit share among members

Other comprehensive iicomé for the year

~otal comprehensive income for the vear

Profit disinbutiens and related 1ax
Change m provision for annugies
Change im members’ capual (note 23)

Balance as at 30 April 2023

* See note 28 for detads on the restatement

Provision
Jor  Members’
Foreign Total Anniities Capital  Members'
Exchange Other Resetves classified as  classified as  Capital &
Reserves Reserves Equity linbifities linbitities Reserves
fm fm £m fnr £ m
(restated)  (resiated)  {restated)

33 {06 141 74 157 372

8 (8) - - - -

43 93 141 74 157 372

739 739 - .

739

49 4 123 - - 123

19 813 862 - - 362
(669) (669) - - (669;
. . 91 - 9
- - {15} iy

G2 242 3134 63 142 541

- 192 742 - 47

34 i7 51 - 5t

34 759 791 - 793
- (730) (730) . (73m
. - - 7 - (17
- - £28) {28

126 27) 397 43 HE] 339

Page 25




CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Apnl 2023

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Members’
Foreign Oth Total Provision for Capital
Exchange R ! _" Reserves Annuities  classified  Members'
Reserves eserves Equity classified as as  Caplinl &
liabilities  liabilities Reserves
im fm £m £m £m £
fresiaied)  (resiated) (resiated)
Balance as at 1 May 2021 26 (387) (361) 63 157 (139)
Restatement adjusiment {note 28) 3 113 118 - - 118
Balance as at | May 2021 (restated) 29 (272) (243) 63 157 (21
Profit for the financial year available
for profit share among miembers* - m 377 B - 377
(')lhc‘r comprchensive income for the 17 18 95 i ) 95
vear
Total comprehensive income for the 17 455 472 ) _ 72
year
Profin distributions and related tax* - 1315} (315) - - 1315}
Change in provision for annuuties - - - i’ - I3/
Change in members’ caputal (note 23) - - - - {15} (13)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 46 {132} {86) 36 142 142
Profit tor the Anancial vear availabie
for profit share among members i 648 638 i i 648
Other comprehensive incame for the 03 17 10 ) A 30
year
Total comprehensive mcome for the 1 665 678 . _ 678
year
Profut distnbutions and related tax R (470} (470} - - 47
Change i provision for anmitics - - - ‘i) - {14}
Change i members' capital (note 23) - - - - {28/ 28)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 50 63 122 42 114 278

* See note 28 firr details on the restatement,
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financia: Statements for the yzar ended 3¢ April 2023

CONSOLIBATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Y ear ended 30 April 2023 2022
Note £m £m
tre stative)

Cash low s from opecatiag activities:

Profit before tax and members' remuneration and profit share 793 797
Interest paid g 24 19
Interest received 8 3) 3
Depreciation 13.27 84 78
Contnibutions to defined benefit pension scheme 21 (24) (22}
Amicunits credited for anriwity obligations 22 (161 5}
Arnnuities patd to former partners 22 2n (20}
(Decrease)increase in property and other provisions [12) 13
Remuneration jo0 members 9 (19) ue)
Operating cashflow before movements in working capital 812 841
Increase in accrued ncome 4 (56}
[ncrease in recenables (73) (36)
Increase in payables 6 26
Cash gewerated from operations 739 758
Income taxes paid (33 (22)
SET CASH GENFRATED FROM OPERATENG ACTIVITIES 706 733
Cash lows from investing activities:

Purchase of property. plant and equipiment 13 29 1153
Proceeds from sublease 27 26 26
NET CASH (USEDYGEXER ATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3) 11

Cash flows from fimancing activities:
Draw :ngs and distribulions to members (708) 1632)
Repayment of lease Tabilines (includine

wmterest pard £1di (2022 £12m3) 2 (i Hon
Capiiat net repayments 10 members 23 28 L5}
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {853) {748)
NET DECREASE 1N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (150) 4)
Cash and cash equivatents ai begirming of year 378 R
f-11ects of foreign exchange rate changes 4 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALFNTS AT END OF YEAR 17 231 378
Reconcilintion of liabilities arising from financing activities:
2023 20221
Mesmbers Members
Capial Capital
fm fm
Opening 142 157
Financing cash flows ) .
Capita’ wransferred (28} (1)
Closing 114 2
Net Fiasncing  Financing Translation
Lease Liabibities Opening  Additions  cash Nows charge  difforemce Closing
£m fm £m fm LG £m
bor the et ended 30 Apr) 2023 535 178 (n i 6 616
Far thee yoar ended 34 Aprd 2622 362 73 (101} 12 7 333
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
bi-anc al Ststenerss for the year ended 30 April 2623

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 30 April Note 2023 2022
Em £m
{resiated)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax and members' remunerstion and profit share 651 404
Inierest paid 16 10
Interest received 2) (3}
Depreciation 1+ 27 25 24
Coniributiens to defined benefil pension scheme 21 24 (3
Amounts credited for annuity obiigations (1 (&)
Annutties paid o former paniners 2 (1% (18)
{Decrease) increase i property and ather provisions (13) 1d
Diidend income*® (138) -
Impasrment of financial assets 1 2
Operating cashflow before movements in working eapitsl 168 418
Decreasef{increase) i accrued income 1 (29)
Decrease/{ increase) in recenables (129 (5
Increasef{decrease) in pavables 149 {1
Cash gencrated from operalions 489 332
Income taxes paid (9) 214
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 480 322
Cash Mows from ins esting activities:
Purchase of propenty, plant and equipment K (6 (8)
Proceeds from sublease 20 18
Duidend received? 16 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING 24 10
Cush flows from financing activities:
Draw ings and distributions 10 members (439N (267}
Repaymen- of lease labihnes pinchedmg mterest paid
i 320:2 £6m)) l ) ’ (39 9
Capnal net repay ments to members 23 {28) (i3)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {546) (331)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE 1N CASH AND CASH {42y 1
Cash and cash equivalents at begmmng of year 138 136
-tlects of loreign exchange rate changes - I
CASIIAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 17 96 138
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from inancing activities:
2023 2022
Members Members
Capital Capital
£m Em
Opening 142 157
Financing zash flow s B .
Capatal ransferred (28) {13)
Closing 114 142
Net Financing  Financing T1ranslation
Lease Liab hues Opening  Additions  cash flows charge  difference Closing
fin tin £m fin fin £m
Fo: the vea- ended 31 Apnl 2073 304 13 (39) ? 1 266
Tor the year ended 31 Apnl 2022 320 26 (49) 6 | 304

*Clifford Chance 1 LP recerved dividend income of £158m during the vear (21122 £nel). of which £10m was received i cash and

the remainmg £148in was oftset aganst an imra-group payable balance
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fmancial Statements for the year ended 3¢ Apnl 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General

Chifford Chance LLP is a imited hiabality paninership registered m England and Wales and with offices in pnncipal
business centres worldwide. Chifford Chance LLP 1s the ultimate parent of the Clifford Chance Group.

2 Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

b

=

These financial statemients present the consolidated and standalone results of Clifford Chance LLP and 1ts subsidiary
entites for the year ended 30 Apni 2023

The consolidated and standalone financial siatements of Clifford Chance LLP have heen prepared n accordance
with UK adopted international accounting standards in comformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 as applicable to | imited Liality Partnerships reporting under those standards.

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for therr annual reporting period commencing |
May 2022:

+ Property. Plant and Equpement Proceeds before Intended U'se  Amendments 1o IAS [6

+ Omerous coniracts - Cost of Fulfilhng a Contract  Amendments to 1AS 37

+ Annual lmprovements (v [ RS Standirds 2018-2020, and

+ Reference to the Conceptual IFrameswork - Amendments to IF RS 3

The ameadments histed above did not have anv impact on the amounts recogmised (n prinr penieds and are nol
expected to significantly affect the current or future penods

Certain new accountng standaeds and mterpretanans have been published that are not mandatony for 3¢ Apnl 2023
reporting perieds and have not been carly wdopted by the Group, We are m process of assessing the impact of the
mplementation of IFRS 17 an our accountng for anmuties due 1o members No other accounting standards are
expected to hase a material impact on the Group i the current or future reporting periods and on feresecable fiture
transactions

Refer to note 28 for restatenicnt af presous y ear financial statemenis for reasons explained in that note
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements mcorporate the financial statements of Clitford Chance LLP and s subsidiary
entities Subsidian enbitics are those entities controlled by Chifford Chance L1 2. winch may be partnershups. linnted
liabihty partnerships or separate corporate cnities Centrol exists when Chifford Chance | LP 15 exposed 1o, or has
nights to. vanable retuns from sis invelvement with the entiny and has the ability 1o affect those returis through sts
power to direct the activities of (he entty The financial statemenis of subsidiany entities are mcluded i the
consolidated financial statements from the daic that control commences until the date that control ceases. As
permittted under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate incomie statemient 15 presented for Chifford
Chance LLP

Intrz-group balances and transactions are chminaled in the consalidated financial statements.
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Mnancial Stalements for the year ended 30 Apnii 2023

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

t) Revenue

d

[

-—

—

Revenue represents amounts chargeable to chents for professional services provided, excluding external
disbursements where the Group acts as an agent and sales tax. The Group 1s generally paid n arrears for 115 services
[nvoices are typically payable within 30 ta 60 davs

The Group provides services 1o clients under a contract or matler. fn most instances. services within a matter are not
considered distinct and are therefore accounted for as a single performance obhigation However. where a contract or
matter requires services that are capable of being distinct, are distinet in the context of the contract and are accounied
for as separatc performance obligations. revenue 1s allocated 1o each of the performance obligation based on a
standalone fee

Typically performance obligations are sabisfied over time as services are provided. because the client receives and
uses the benefits simultaneoushy Revenuc for vanable time-based contracts, 1s recogmised as the customer 1s recen ing
these services For fixed or capped fee contracts. resenue is recogmsed based on the proportion of the senvice
performance with an mput method used to measure progress for each performance abligation The mput method used
15 the v alue of ume recorded to date relauve to the total value of time expected 10 be incurred 1o complete the scope of
the matter The Croup has applied the practical expedient of IFRS 15 paragraph 121 10 not dsclose mformanion
about remaming performance obligations as the performance obligations are part of contracts or matters with an
onginal expected durauon of one vear or less

Revenue for services which 1s contingemt and dependent on external events (for example the complenon of a
transaction hsting or lund formation}. is recogmised when the event 1s highly probable and a significant reversal 1s
unlihely The resenue constramt s apphied untl such time as the event has occurred. contingent fees have been
confimed with the chient or there remans hile uncertainny that the event wall occur

‘The valuation of accrued micome and calculauon ol revenue 1s dependent on Judging the Likely engagement oulcome
for matters with a contingent fee amrangement

Members' remuneration, drawings and distributions

Fhe partners who are not members of the LUP recenve remuneralion on an equivalent basis to members. Fher
remuneration is presented in the consohdated income statement Lnder ‘Staft and related costs'. Remuncration which 1s
not profit-related and not chscretionary that 15 pawd te certain partaers whi are members 1s ireated as a charge against
profits and is presented in the consolidated meome statement under ‘Menibers' remuneration charged as an expense’

Partners are paid a momhly drassing i advance of the calculation and payment of profit distributions. Such amounts
are classified as amounts due from members withan current assets Disinbutions of profits to members are recogmised
within equity when the distribution occurs.

Foreign curreney

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the foreign exchange rate ruhing on the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and Hiabiliies denominatad in foreign currencies at the balance shect date are translated at the foreign
exchange rates nuling on that date Foreign exchange differences anising are recogmsed in the consolidated income
statement. The presentation currency of the Group 1s Pound Sterling (GBP).

['he resulis of offices. which do not prepare their financial stalements i GBP. are translated mic GUP at the average
rates for the year which approximate ta the rates at the dare of the transactions The balance shects of these offices arc
translated at the exchange rate rulme on the balance sheet date | xehange differences arising Irom the retranslation of
opanng net assels. together with the difterence between the mcome statement transiated at the average and closing
exchanye rates. and certun cxchange difterences arsmg on the disinbution of profits o members, are recorded m the
forcivn exchange reserve
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

) Property, plant and equipment

h

—

=

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
Deprecianon 1s charged to the meome statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The esumated uscful lives arc as follows

L easehold improvemenis - 10 13 years. or hic of lease 1f shorter
Office and IT equipment

- Personal computers and small [T assets - 2 -5 years

- Other equipment - 3-3years
Furniture and fittings - 3 - 10 vears

Intangible assets

Costs associated with the development of the global accounting and practice management sy stem, including mternal
costs direcily atinibutable to development were recogmsed in the financial statements as an intangible asset  The
Fimm expected 10 derive economic benefits from the development costs capitalised in this manner over a peniod of ten
vears These intangible assets ate now fullhy amortised

Soflware as a Service (SaaS) configuration and custansation costs arc expensed as incurred  unless they create a
separalely wdentifiable asset contrelled by the | um, in which case they are capitalised

Tmpairment of tangible and intangible nsscts

At each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the camrving amounts of its tangibie and intangible asscts to delermine
shether there i amy indication that those assets have suftered an impairment loss 10 any such idication exists. the
recorerable amount of the assct s estimated s order 10 determune 1he extent of any impaimment loss  If the
recorerable anrount of an dsset 1> otimated b less than s camying amoeund the carmy ing smount s reduced to os
recorerable amount and the impaiament loss 1s recogmised as an expense immediately

Pensions

i Defined contribution plans
Contnbutions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense an the mcome stalement as
meurred

i, Defined benefit schente
Defined benefit scheme the assets of which are held 1n separate trusiee-adnumistered fund. is funded by
payments from the employer. taking account of the recommendations of an independent qualified actuany.

Full actuarial valuations of the principal scheme are carned out eveny three years and e scheme actuan
updates these ai each balance sheet date

Defined bencfit schemes are accounted for under IAS 19 (revised) Emplosee Benefits The retirement benefits
ohhgation represents the present salue of the obligation 1o provide benefits. less the faw value of the schemes' assets.
The financing costs of the schemes are recopmised m the consolidated mecome statement and actuarial gains and
fosses are recosanised (Wl the consehdated statement of comprehensive income Net interest s caleulated by
applying the discount rate (e the net delined pensien lability
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Apni 2023

2 Significant accouating policies {continued)

[}

k}

m

—

Annuities

The cost of providing annuitics to current and retired partners is determined annually by an independent actuary and
charged to the income statement over the estimated service lives of the pariners

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when there 1s a legal or cunstructive present abligation as a resull ol'a
past event. it is probable that an outflow of econoinnc benefits will be required 12 settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obligahon Provisions are determuned by discounting 1f the effect 15
matenal, the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabihities include pessible obligauons whose existence will be confirmied by uncenam future events that
are not whally within the control of the entity and obligations that are not recisgnised because their amount cannet
be measured reliably or because settlement 15 not probable Where contmgent habibties exist. they are disclosed in
the notes i the financial statements See note 20 for further details

Financial insiruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the group s balanve sheet when the Group becomes a party
1o the contracival provisions of the instrument

lnvestments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less accumulated impatrment losses

Traide and other receivables
Trade and other recervables are measured al cost fess amy umpairment incfuding an expected credit fess
provision

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equnalents comprise cash m hand or demand deposns and other short-term haghly hiquid

investments

Acerteed Income
Accrued meome 15 measured al the selling value of unbilled hours chargeable o clients less any impament

inctuding an expected credit loss provision.

Trade and other paynbles
Trade and other payables. including borrowings. are measured at farr value on mception then subsequently at

amoruised cost

In relation to the impament of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expecled credit loss model The Group apphies
the simphfied approach to measure expected credit losses using a hifetime expected foss allowance for trade
receiy ables and accrued income. In case of investments m subsidianies the LLP cammies out annual inipairment tests
1o ascertan 1f the carmyng value of such investments are impawed These tests comprise a comparison between the
carrying value of such mvestments and the net asset value of such subsidhanes In some nstances. the fulure
estimated proficor loss are considered or valuations of subsidanes are prepared Valuatons for impamment tests are
hased on established market muluiples or nisk-adjusted fulure cash flows over the estimated wseful fife of the asset.
where himited. discounted wsing appropriate interest rales The assumptions relaing to future cash flows eshimated
usefil lives and discount rates are based on business forciasts and arc therefore. wherently judgemental Futre
events could cause the assumptions used in these impairment tests 1o change with a consequent adverse effect on the
future results ol the subsidiaries
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Staterments for the year ended 30 Aprif 2023

2 Significant accounting policies (confinued)
n) Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract 15 or contams a lease at the incepuion of the contract A lease conveys the
right to direct the use and obtamn substantally all of the economic benefits of an 1dentified asset for a period of ime
m cxchange for consideration

As alessee

The Group leases buddings for its office space The leases ol office space typreally run for a defined penod, but
may have extensicn options Conlracts may contain both lease and non-lease components For property leases the
Group has elected to separate \ease and non lease components and allocates the consideration i the contract 1o the
lease and non-lcase components based on thar relafive stand-afone prices Lease terms are negotiated on an
mdividual basis and contain a wide range of differeat terms and condibons The lease agreements do not impose
covenants other than the secunty interests wn the leased assets that are held by the lessor Leased asseis may not be
used as secunity for borrowing purposes

Leases are recognised as o right-of-usc asset and a corresponding liabihity at the date at which the teased asset 15
available for use by the Group Lease Liabilities nclude the net present value of the following lease payments
~ fixed payments,

variable lease patment that are based on an indexy of a rate. il measured using the mdex or rale as at the
commencement date, and
- payments of penalties for ternunating the lease (1 the lease tem reflects the Group exercising that option

| ease paymenis 10 be made under reasonably certamn exiension options arc also mcluded in the measurement of the
hiability The lease pmyments are discownted wsing the interest rate implicat in the lease It that rate cannot be readily
determmed, which is the case for leases m the Group the lessee's incremental borrow g raie 1s used. being the ratc
that the ndividual lessee would hase to pin 10 borrow the funds necessany o oblam an assct ol a simular valuc 1o
the right-pf-use asset in a simidar cconomic envweonment with sular terms sceuniy and condions

To determine the incremental borowmng rate the Group
- uses a relevant corporale hond rate within cach specific region and
makes an adjustment spece e & e fease ternt and ¢hie risk at cach regton relative to the overall market

The Group 1s exposed 10 polential fulure mereases i vanable lease pay ments based on an index or rate, which are
not included m the lease labiluy unl| they take effect When adjustnients Lo lease pay ments based on an imdex or
rate take cffect. the lease liabiluy is reassessed and adjusted agamst the night-ofuse asset The Group has no
variable lease pavinents for us property lcases other than those linked 1a an indeX or a rate

The right-of-usc assel is iniually measured at cosl, which comprises the iniial amount of the lease Liability adjusted
for any lease payments made al or before the commencemeni date. less any lease incentives recenable, plus any
satial derect costs incurred and an estumate of costs 1o dismantle and remove the underlyng assct or to restore the
underly ing asset or the site on which it is locatwed less any lease meenlives reeces ed

Right-of-usc assets are gencrally deprecrated over the shorter of the assct's useful life and the lcase term on a
straight-line basis.

T'he practical expedients for short term feases were not adopied for the leases within the Group. The Group also has
low value leases that are primanly classified as office cquipment and a few molor vchicle leases  [he office
cyuipment mostly comprise printers and phatocomers  Mhe Greup has net adopied the prachcal expedient for short
term or tow value leases and have meluded all these leases on the balance sheet
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CLIFFORD CHAMCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

n) Leases (continued)

0

—

As a lessee (continued)

There are no material lermination options included m the property leases across the Group. The Group has included
some material extension options for the Singapore & Australian office leases as management is reasonably centain
the extension options held by the Group will be exercised Leases due to expire within 12 months of year end were
examined to see if there were any extension options exercisable by lessee that may potentially be exercised In
considering all the facts and circumstances the Group determined that none of these leases expiring in 12 months
should include an extended lease term.

As a lessor
The Group also sub-let some of its office buttdimgs. priman!y i the ¢ K and the US The Group delermines at each
sub-lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease

To classify each lease. the Group makes an overatl assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset 1fthis is the case. then the lcase is a finance lease
il mot, then it is an operating lease.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor. i1 accounts for s interest in the head lease and the sub-lease separately
11 assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference 1o the night-of-use assct anising from the head lease.
not with reference (o the underlying asset.

Income taxation

income tax pavable on partnership profits 15 the personal biabihty of mdividual members i most junsdictions
including the UK. In some locations. income tax payable on partnership profits 1s the liabily of the relevant
paninership. There is a separaie tax charge in the income statement and 2 separate tax Liabihity 1n the balance sheect
for such amounts payablc by partnerships together with tax pay sble by the cerporate subsidianes

Deferred 1ax 15 the tay expected to be pay able or recoverable on differences between the carmy g amounts of assets
and habihlies in the financial statements of the Group's corporale subsidiaries and whe comresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit and 15 accounted for usng the balance sheet hability method Deferred 1ax
liabihities are gencrally recogmised for all 1axable wemporary differences and deferred 1ax assets are recognised to the
extent that i s probable that tavable profits wail be available against which deductible wmporary differences can be
utilised in future The camying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each ba’ance sheet date and reduced to
the exteni that it 1s no lenger probable that sulficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part of the assel
to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the hability 1s setiled or the
assel 1s reatised based on 1ax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date n the relevant couniny  Deferred tax assets and liambhines are oftset when there 1s a legally enforceable right o
set off current 1ax assets against current tax habutities and when they relate to ncome taxes lesied by the same
taxation authonty and the miention 1s 1o settle the current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

Current and deferred tax are recogmised 1 the income statement. except when they relate to items that are
recognised m the statement of comprehensive income or directly m statement of changes 1n equity m which casc,
the current and delerred 1ax are also recogimised m the statement ol comprehensive mcome or direcily e eguty
respectinely
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

p} Members' capital

q

r

—

Non-US members are required to give a minimum of not less than six months notice of retrement whilst S
members are not required to give notice Members' capital which is measured at cost 15 repayable within six
months of retiremen! Accordingly, members' capatal is required 1o be classified as a habuluy, with capiial due to
LS and tennng partners classified as a current lrability, and the remamng Liabily classified as a non-current
fabrluy

Critical accounting estimates & judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certam cruical accounting
estimates and judgements, meludng judgements regarding the apphication of the accounting policies Eshmates
and judgements are contmually evalvated and are based on historical experience and other factors. icluding
expectations of finure events, that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The critical accounting
estimates and key sources of esimation applied  these financial staterments are set oui below. Amy significant
change 1n these estimates could have a matenal effect on the Group's [inancial position and results of operations
within the next year in terms of JAS | 'Presentauion of Financial Siatements'

Actiiarial assumptions

The pension fliabilities tn respeet of the prineipal defined benefit scheme and the provisions for annui(y payments
ta current and reured partners have been independemly valued by actuanies based on mformation provided by
Clifford Chance L L.LP The assumptions are set oul w notes 21 and 22 and have been deternuned having taken
advice from the independent acluaries

Leases - discount rate

Grven the absence o the uierest rate yphiat ma lease the Group hay apphied a methodology to determine the
Tessec's incremental borrowing rate  7has rae s detenmined as bemg the rate that the mdividual Tessee would have
10 pay 10 borrow the funds necessary o obtain an asset of a smmlar value w the nght of-use assel n a similar
ecopomic environment with simlar tems. secunty and conditions An adjustment 1s then made speaific 1o the risk
factor in cach region

Going concern

The apphcability of going concern basis 15 revicwed by the management taking nte accoun the conhinued
avarlability of suffictent funding for the operations of the Group The Group’s mam sources of funding are
paniners” capital, undistribwed profits and borrowing facitities The current bomroving faciitics are described in
note 19 and the availabiluy of these faciliwes 15 dependent upon continued compliance with the applicable
financial covenants Regular financia! forecasts are prepared Lo momnor the Group's fundmg requirements and
projecied compliance with the covenants Consideration is given 1o the potential business risks wiich could aftect
future comptiance and the polenuial actons which could be taken to mitigate the effect of these nisks The main
financial risks 1o which the Group 15 exposed are described in note 26

It is considered that the Gruup will be abie to continue 1o comply with the applicable covenants for a penod of at
least twehve months from the date of approval of these financial statements. gisen the cuerent level of cash at bank
and forecasted trading performance

Accordingly. the gomg concern basis of accounting has been adopted 1 preparing these financial stalements
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

s} Related party transactions

Within the Group financial statements, balances beiween Chfferd Chance LLP and its subsidiary entities have
been eliminated on consohdation Total transaciions with and year end balances held with other related parties are
disclosed in note 235.

Remuneraiion of the Executive Leadership Group members, who arc related parties, is disclosed i note 25

Entities included in the consolidation

Chifford Chance LLP practices through overseas branches in Abu Dhabi. Amsterdam, Beying. Brussels, Dubar and
Shanghai. As a1 30 April 2023, Chifford Chance LLP also had the followmg undertakings. all 100%0 controlled, except
as detailed in the section headed "Alhances” below

The principal activity of the enuities hsted below 15 the provision of legal services with the exception of those marked
below as follows:

(1) entities which provide services to other Group cntities. or
(2) entities which hold investments 1n other Group undertakhings. or
(3) entities which are dormant

The UK subsidiaries annotated with an '* from the followmg list of subsicharies are excipt from the Companies Act
2006 requirements refating to the audit of thewr mdividual accounts by virtue of Scction 479A of the Companies Act
2006 as Clifford Chance 1 | P has guaranteed the subsidiary companies under Section 479C of the Companies Act
2006.

Name of entity Country of Registered address
Operation
Chiftord Chance Australia Level 24 Brookticld Place. 10 Carrington Strect
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
Chfford Chance Austraha Pty Limited (21 Australia Level 24 Brookfield Place, 10 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
Chflord Chance Austratia Senvices Py Australia Level 24. Brookdicld Place. 10 Carrington Sirect
L omited (1D Sydney NSW 2000 Awvstealia
Chifford Chance Austraiia Nomines Plv L.td Australia l.evel 24. Brookficld Place. 10 Carrington Street
() Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
Chilford Chance Ltda Brazi! Rua Funchal 418 | 5th Floor, SP 04551 -66(
S0 Paulo Brazil
Clifford Chance Frague LL.P* Czech Republic 10 Upper Bank Sireet. London, E14 3)J. UK
Clifford Chance Europe LLP France 10 Upper Bank Street, London. E14 51J, UK,
Chifford Chance SELAFA 1} France 1. rue d"'Astorg. C5 60038. 73377 Paris
Cedex 08, France
Chifford Chance Services Gmibtl ;1) Gern any Kélner Strafle 3 a 63760 Eschborn Gennamy
Chifford Chance Germany JunghofstraBe 14, 60311 Frankfurt am Main
Steuerberatungsgeseilschaft mbH 1) Gennany
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Entities included in the consolidation - continued

Nume of entity Country of
Operation

Clifford Chance PartnerschaRl mit Germany

beschrankier BeruGGhaltung (2)

Chifford Chance Tech GmbH Germany

Chifford Chance GmbH Germany

Chfford Chance (2) Hong Kong

Brecon Limued (1) Hong Kong

Legibus Serretanies (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong

(1&2)

Chifford Chance Limited (3) Hong Kong

Clifford Chance Business Services Private  India

Limited (1)

Siwdio Legale Assocaln m Associazione  [taly

con Chifford Chance

Chifford Chance (Tokyoj { [ * Japan

Chifford Chance 1 aw Of¥ice Japan

Chiltord Chance (Gaihohuho Kyodo hgan)  Japan

Cliftord Chance 1 uxemhourg

Chfford Chance GP (2} 1 uxnembourg

Chfford Chance Janicka. kruzewsk, Poland
Namothrewicz i Wspolnicy sp b
Chfford Chance Badea SPRL Romania
Chiford Chance C{S Limited*# Russia
Clifford Chance Pie L nmited Singapore
Chifford Chance Intemational LI P* Sigapore
Moroeco
Chifford Chance S L P U Spam
Moleglade AR Sweden
Chfford Chance { Thailand Lied |3} Thailand
Judde Holdings 1 innted (3} Thalland
ChifTord Chance Danmisman ik Flizmetien Turhey
Avuhaihk Onakligi
Chifford Chance Damigmanlih Hizmetlenn Turkey

I inmited Sicketi (1)
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Registered address

Tunghofstrafie ¥4, 603 (1 Frankfurt am Main
Gertiiany

JunghofstraBe 14, 60311 Frankfurt am Mam
Germany

Junghofstralle 34, 6031) Frankfurt am Main
Getttiany

27th Floor, Jardine House. Onc Connaught Place.
Hong Kong

2Tth Floor, Jardine House, One Connaught Place,
Hong Kong

2Mh Floor, Jardine House. One Connaughi Place,
Hong Kong

Room A, 30th Floor. Jarditte House. One
Connaught Place. Hong Kong

First Floor, Unit No. 3. Ambience Corporate Tower
1. Plot Mo, 3, Ambience $sland. NH 8, S¢c 26,
Gurgaon, Gurgaon, Harvana, 122001

Via Broletto 16, 20121, Milano, l1alia

31 West 52nd Street. New York, NY 10019-6131,
USA

Palace Bwslding, 3rd floor. 1-1. Marunouchi 1-
cheme, Chiveda-ku. Fokyo 100-0005. Japan
Palace Building. 3rcd Noor. 1 1. Marunouchy -
chome Uhneda-ku. Tokyo 100-0905, Japan
1B G D Charlone B P 1147, 11011

t uxembourg. Grand-Duche de Luxembourg

1D Bid G D Charlotte, B P I147.1-1011
Lunembourg Grand-Duche de Luxembourg
Norway House. wl Lwowshka 19, 00-660 Warsaw,
Poland

Excelsior Center. 28-30 Acadeusicr Street, Sector 1
Bucharest, 0100 16. Romania

10 {Ipper Bank Street, London. E14 5)J, UK
Marina Bay Financial Centre, 25th Floor, Tower 3
12 Marna Boulevard. Singapare

10 L pper Bank Strees. London, £14 51). UK

Pasco de (a Caicllana 110, 28046. Madrid. Spain
C!O 1 MF Sweden AB, Vasagatan 38 111 20,
Steckholm. Sweden

Level 11, Mercuny Tower, 540 Plconchit Road,

L wmpune. Pathumwan, Bangkok. 10338, Thailand
Level )1 Mercuny Tower, 540 Pleonchu Road,
Lumpi, Pathupvan, Bangkok 10339, Thailand
kanyon Ofis Binast hat 10, Buyukdere Cad. No.
185, [stanbul 34394 Turhey

Kanyon Ofis Bmasi Kat 10, Buyukdere Cad No
185, tstanbul 34394 [urkes
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Entities included in the consolidation - continued

Name of entity Country of Registered address
Operation
Clifford Chance Newcastle Limyted (1)* UK The Lumen St James Boulevard, Newcastle Helix,
Newcastle L 'pen Tyne. UK
Clifford Chance No 2 Limuted (2)* UK 10 Upper Bank Street. London. E14 300, 'k
Clifford Chance Germany LLP (3)* UK 10 Upper Bank Street, London, Eid 312, 1'k
(formerly Clifford Chance Deutschland
LLP)
Ctifford Chance Nominees No 2 [wmuted UK 10 L pper Bank Street, London, E14 5J) 1 K
(h*
Clifford Chance Pension Trustees Lymined UK 10 Upper Banh Strect, London, E14 5J), U K
(3)
Clifford Chance Property Nonminces UK 10 U'pper Bank Strect. London, E14 511 K
Limited (1)*
Clifford Chance Secretarics Lumied (2}* Uk 10 U'pper Bank Street, Londun, E14 5J), Uk
Mithras Limited (2) UK 10 Upper Bank Street. |.ondon. E14 $J) UK
Moleglade Limited* UK 16 Upper Bank Street. London. E14 5)). UK
Clifford Chance [.ondon Limued (1) UK 10 Upper Bank Street, London, E14 5)), UK
CC Worldwide Linuted [ndi/Kuwan 10 Upper Bank Street. London. E14 571, UK
and Kema
Cliflord Chance Applied Solunons | imited UK 19 Upper Bank Street. London, E14 3)), UK
Clifford Chance Technology Limticd* UK 10 Upper Bank Street. London. E14 §J). UK
ClifTord Chance Holdings LLP (1&2)* UK 10 Upper Bank Street, London, L14 3)), UK
Clifford Chance Business Services UK 10 Upper Bank Street. London. E14 5)), UK
Holdings I imited (7)*
Clifford Chance US 1T P U'SA 31 West 52nd Street. New York. NY
i0019-6131. USA
{ hlford Chance | aw i ;3 Saudi \rabia €O Abuhimed Alsheikh Alhagbani Law [im

Bulding 15. The Business Gate king Khaled
Intemational Awrport Road Cordoba Dustrict
Riyadh. Kmgdom of Saudi Araba
a The fin ceased operatiaes tn Russia from 31 May 2022, after which the provision of [egal sers wces Irom our
exisimg Moscow ofhce ceased Fxisting Russian cient work was transferred to a new independent law {imm

Alliances

“he Group has entered i contraciual arrangements wilh the entities below such as 1o require their results to be
cansolidated s uh the financial staiements ol the Group

Name of entity Country of Registered address
Operation
Cavenagh Law LLP Singapare Marina Bay Nnanctal Centre, 25th Floor,
Tower 3, 12 Marnina Boules ard, Singapore 013982
Cificr Avukauk Orakhg Turkes hanyin Ofis Binast Kat 10, Buyuhdere Cad No
talso known as Cifici Attormes Partnership) 185 Istanbut 34394, Turkes
Clifford Chance Sociedade de Consultores  Brazil Rua Funchal 418 15th Floor. SP 04551-060

S30 Paulo, Brazil

With effect from | May 2023 Clifford Chance LI P and Abuhimed Alsheihh Alhacban [ aw Tim (AS&I11 have
entered mte an agrecment to form a joint venwre in Saudi Arabia. The joint venture will be known as AS&H
Clifford Chance having registered office in Rivadh Clifierd Chance LI P holds 50%0 of the voting nights in tius
Jomt venture
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4. Revenue

The Group derives revenue from the provision of professional services to clients typically over time i the followmg
geographic and chient segments

Revenue by geography

2023 2022

£fm £m

U'nited Kingdom 764 687
Contmental Europe 634 622
Asia Pactfic 332 344
Americas 268 259
Middlc East 64 57
2,062 1.969

2023 2022

Revenue by chent sepment im £m
Financial Investors 738 704
Corporate Lnterpnses 136 631
Banks 508 531
Orhers 80 103
2.062 1,969

The Group has recogmsed acerued meome of £376m (2022 £369m) m relation 10 contracts with customers. Accrued income
anses when the Group fulfills contractual performance obligauons ahead of mihing 11s clients.
The Group also recognised a loss allow ance for accrued income of £2m {2022 £3m). also see note 26

5. Stafr and related costs

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m fm Em £m
Satartes and ather remuneration of nan-rientbers 761 684 7} 67
Sovial seeunity contnibutions 62 34 7 6
Pensien contnbutions 25 23 5 3
Aunnunties credu (note 22) {14 (5) 8] (3
Other s1aff cosis 126 113 36 55
964 369 130 133
The menthly aserage number of partners and employecs
during the year was as Iollows:
Consglidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
Nos Nos. Nos, Nos
Total partners 593 563 242 230
Associales and other fee camers 2481 2452 296 36
Toial wrainees 650 636 85 87
Adnnwstrative and suppor staft 3.017 3010 241 234
6,741 6,661 874 B67

[he monthly average number of members uicluded above for te Group 1s 480 (2022 457)

Ihe amount of profit for the current year which 15 attributable 10 the member with the largest cntlement to profit is £4 82m
12022 £4%4m}
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6. Profit for the vear

Profit before tax for the year avanlable for profit share among niembers has been amived a1 afler chargmg/(crediting)

2023 2022
£m im
frestated)
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (note 13} 20 20
Depreciation on right-of use assets (note 27) 64 38
tliains losses on foreign exchange” (21 5
Operaling lease mcome from sub tenants (note 27} (31 i3
* See note 28 for detatls on the restatement
7. Auditors' remuneration 2023 2022
€m £m
The foliowing amounts have been charged against operating profit
I'ees payable 1o the LLP's auditors for the audrt of the 11 P's financial statements i1 10
Fees payable 10 the auditors and their associates for other senvices (o the Group
- Fees for the audit of the L | I's subsidian, entuies pursuant to legislation 05 03
Total audn fecs 16 13
Audit-related assurance sen ices 42 o1
Taxation compliance sen ices 03 038
Other taxation advisory services * 0l []
Other services and fees pay able 1n respect of associated pension schemes 01 01
| otal non-audtt fees 09 10
Total tees w audilors 23 23
* Other waxation advison seryvices 18 made up of senoices totabng to £74.952 (2022 £42.639)
8. Finance income and costs
2023 2022
fm £m
Finance income
Finance lease mcome from sub tenants (note 27) (2) 3)
Interest mmcome on bank deposits (1) -
) 3)
Finance costs
Pensions (note 21) 4 3
| mance charge on lease habilitics (note 27) 14 12
Annutics (nofe 22) 3 2
Interest on tax pavments 1 2
24 21
tinance costs - nel 21 18
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9. Members' remuneration charged as an expense

Members' remuneration charged as an expense comprises the remuneration of certan parners who are members of Chiford
Chance LLP but whose remuneration is not a share of profits and not discretienary amounung to £19m (2022 £16m), and a
charge of £1m (2022 £2m) for annuities {refer note 22)

10. Income tax expense

2023 2022
£m £m

Current tax
L'k corporation 1ax 4 4
Overseas taxes 36 2}
Pnor year adjustments (%) 16
31 41

Deferred tax

In respect of accalerated capital allow ances. bonus accruals & allowable losses - iy
carried forward

- (1)
Income tax cxpense 31 R

In most locatons, including the Uk mcome tax payable on the allocation of profits 1o members 1s the personal habiliny of the
members and hence 15 not shown in thee el sttenwns

Reconcilaton of 125 charge 13 2022
£m £m
{resiated)
Profit before taxation™ 773 179
Amounts subject to persenal tax* (380) (634)
Adjusted Profit before taxaien 193 145
Tax at 1 K standard corporate raie 19 49%2 (2022 19%) 38 28
Permanent diflerence betwcen the hasis of recognition of profits for tax and accounting - (8)
Tax effects of deffering on erscas lax rates 2 4
Prior y car adjustment 19 16
1otal Income lax expense 31 40

* See note 28 Jor delads on the restatemen

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

2023 2022
£fm £m
Deferred 1ax charge m the reporting peried and not recognised i the micome
statement but directly charged to ciher comprehiensive income - 51
Deferred tay assel
Deferred tax asset mavements during the current year were as follows 2023 2022
£m £m
Al the begimnmg of the year I 51
Movement m the year - (50}
At the end of the year T 1

The deferred 1 asset 15 recognised n respeet of accelerated captal allowances, honus accrunls & allowable losses carmied
forward I the previous year, the LE P, Chifford Chance Londen Lmuted ("CCELL") and the Trustce ol the Pension Scheme. in
which gertam empleyees of CClL participated  had agreed under a Flevible Apportionment Amrangement’ to the transler of
the whale pension habitin of CCLL 1o the L117 as on 30 Nevember 2021 As a resull. the defemed tax asset recogmised m
CCLD mrespect of temporary differences refated Lo the defined benefit pension scheme was reversed in the previous year
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11. Profit attributable 1o the Limited Liability Partnership

The profit for the financial year available for profit share ameng members dealt with in the financizl statements of the parent

undertaking Chifford Chance LLP. 15 set out w1 note 24

12, Investments - LLP

Cost:

Balance as a1 | May 2021
Additions*

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2022
Additions

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023

fmpairment:

Balance as at | May 2021
Additions

Balance as at 30 April 2722
Addnions

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023
Carrying amouni:

As al 30 April 2022

As al 30 Apnl 2023

The subsidiaries of the [ 1 P as at 30 Apnil 2023 are as follows

Name Direct shares
held (%)
Moaleglade | mnited 1o
Catford Chance No 2 Limited 1119
Caflord Chance | ondon Limied *

Registered \ddress

10 Upper Bank Street [ ondon, |14 3)) UK
10 Upper Bank Street. [ ondon 1 {4 5)). UK
10 Upper Bank Street | ondon, 7 14 511 1'K

£m

220
225

225

* In the previoas year. the LLP, Clitfford Chance London Limited ("CCLL") and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme. m which
certam emp.osees of CCLL participated had agreed under a 'Flevible Apportionment Amangement' to the transfer of the
whole pension iability of CCLL to the LLP as on 30 November 2021 The outstanding pension hability on 30 N.avember
2021 was £229m The transfer was accounted for as a capital contribution by the LLP wn CCLI and resulted wn an wcrease in
invesiments by an amount equal to the net pension liability at the date of the transfer

Also refer note 3 for list of entities meluded m the consohdaticn,
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13. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - Consolidated

\ . Intangihle
Froperty, plant and equipment assets
[.caschold Office and Furniture
. IT . Total
improvements equipment and fittings

Cost: im £m fm im £m
Balance as at 1 May 2021 118 77 23 223 51
Foreign exchange movements 3 1 | 5 -
Additions 4 10 ] 15 -
Disposals (9 (5) (2} {16) -
Balance as at 30 Apn) 2022 116 83 28 227 51
Foreign exchange movements 1 - 1 2 -
Addinons 18 8 3 29 .
Disposals (7) (7) (2) (16} -
Balance as a1 30 April 2023 128 84 30 242 51
Accimulated depreciation:
Balance as at 1 May 202) {68) (63) 20) (151) 130
 oreign exchange movements 2) (n mn (4) -
Depreciation charge for the year (N R3] (2} 20 -
Disposals 6 3 2 13 -
Balance as at 30 Apn| 2022 (TH (68} 20 {162) (51}
J-oreign exchange movements (1) - - m -
Depreciation charge for the vear (%) {9 ) 20) -
Disposals 5 7 2 14 -
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023 {718) (70) (21) (1691 {51)
Carrying amount.
As at 30 April 2022 43 L5 ? 63 -
As at 30 April 2023 50 14 9 73 -

The intangible assels are capitalised software deselopment cosss and are fully amorlised
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14. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - LLP

) . Entangible
Property, plant and equipment assels
Leasehold Office m;;'_ Furniture
improvements equipment and fittings Total Software
Cost: fm £m fm £m fm
Balance as at | May 202) ] 39 9 34 31
Additions 4 4 8 -
Disposals ) (2: (h (K -
Balance as at 30 Apn] 2022 I 41 3 35 51
Additions 3 3 - 6 -
Disposals {(2) ( - 3) -
Batance as al 30 Apnl 2023 12 43 3 58 51
Acctimulated depreciation:
Balance as at | May 2021 n (35) 13 43) (5N
Deprecrauon charge for the year n 3 (+)
Disposals 4 2 - 6 -
Ralance as at 30 Apnl 2022 4 (36 3} (43: (51)
Depreciation charge for the y2ar 4} 3 - £
Disposals 2 | - 3 -
Batance as at 30 April 2023 {3) (38} 3 (dd i {31)
Carrying amount:
As at 30 Apnl 2022 7 3 - 17 -
Asat 30 Apni 2023 9 N - 14 -

I'he mtangible assets are capiiahsed software developmens costs and are fully amoruscd

Page 44



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Francial Statemens for the year ended 30 April 2023

15. Trade and ather receivables

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m £m £m
tresrated)
Trade recervables 516 452 267 217
Amounts due from subsichany cntitics - - 353 274
Sundny recervables and prepayments 83 68 40 18
601 520 660 529

Furiher information regarding credit sk and the allowance for doubtful debts in relation to client receivables is given m note
26

There 15 no Malerial difference beiween ihe fair valuc and carrying value of trade and other receivables. The amounts for
wntercompany result from fees owed by other offices in respect of client matters which arise when the leading office issues a fee
note 1 the chent and also m respect of mier-office charges for items such as management charges Also the amounts due from
subsidiany entities includes amouwnts i respect of distnibution and payment of profits by the LLP on behall of subsidiary
entities 10 Pariners of those subsidiary entities as per the partnership agreement. Such balances are interest free and repayable
on demand

16. Amounts due from and duc to members

Amounts due from and due 1o members comprise drawings paid 10 members during the financial year, which are advance
pasments n relation to the profit for the financial year avadable for profit sharc among members. together with advance
payments of members' personal tases, less net amounts withheld from prior year profit distributions but not yet paid over to the
tax authontics i relaton to members' prior year tax habiiies

17. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £fm £m im
Cash al bank and i hand 332 378 96 138
232 78 96 132

The cash and cash equivalents dhisclosed above and i the statement ot cash flows include £6m (LLP: £mil) (2022; Group £4m,
11 P £nli warth of cash at bank which are subject 1o contracinal restrictions and are therefore not avanlable for general usc.

There 15 no matenal difference between the fair value and carmy g vadue of cash and cash equivalents.

18. Trade and other payuhles

Counsolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£in £m fm £ni
{resiged)
Accuunts payable 45 39 29 25
Amounts due 10 subsidiary entities - - 406 406
Social secunity and other taxes 21 19 L )
Corporate and income 1axes payable 12 10 2 4
Capital of non-members 26 23 12 14
Undistnibuted camings due to non-imembers i 104 33 31
Other creditors 5§ 44 19 17
266 244 504 498
Accruals 216 229 64 75
Deferred ncome 24 19 24 19
506 492 592 532

There s no matenial dulerence between the fair value and carmyng yvalue of trade and other payvables

The amounts due to subsidian eniities result from fees due 10 other offices in respect of client matiers which arise when the
leadmg office 1ssues a fee note 10 the client and also m respect ol mter-office charges for items such as management charges
Also the amounts due o subsidiary entities inctudes amoums v respect of disinbution and payment of profits by the
subsidiary entrties an behall of the LI P e Partners of those subsidiary entities as per the partnership agreement Such balances
are nterest free and repay able on demand
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Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

19. Borrowings

No borrowings were oulstanding at the balance sheet date (2022 £nil). The average cffecive mterest ratc was 3 8%
(2022 102%)

AL 30 Apnl 2(:23 avaitable undrawa commitied borrowing facilities in both the Group and the LLP amounted to £150m (2622
£130m) winch expires in April 2025,

20. Provisions and Employee benefit obligations

Consolidated
Employ ee benefit obligations Provisions
Other
Pensions Annuities Property provisions Total
£m fm £m fm £m

(note 21) {nole 22)
Balance al | May 2021 271 179 20 10 480
Charge {credit) during the year 3 n - 27 31
Amounts paid - utilised / released (22) 1201 - (2) 44)
Net gam due to changes in actuarial (12%) . i . (12%)
assumptions
Balance at 3¢ April 2022 129 158 20 35 342
Charge(credit) during the year 4 1 - 3 3
Amounts paid - unlised / relcased (24) 2h - (19} {64)
Net gan due to changes in actvanial 0 ) A i (1n
assumpuons '__
Balance a1 30 April 2023 92 133 20 18 264

Provisions Property

‘The Group 15 required 1o restore certaie legsed prenuses to thar orpinal condion at the end of the respectine lease s A
provision has heen recogmised for the present value of the estimated restoranon expendire

Previsions - Other provisions

Other provistons includes provision related to those matters for which the tax detenminatian 1s uncertain but 1t 1s considered
probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authorts  The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
amount expected 1o become pay able. The assessment is based on the ;udgement of tax prafessionals and i certam cases based
on specialist mdependent tax advice Other provisions also inctudes privision related to long wm employee benefitls These
provisions are not expecied io be settled in the neat financial year

The Group may be mvolved in disputes in the ordman course of business which may give nise 10 claims by chents or
regulatory imvestigations or preceedings The Group defends such claims where appropriate and also benefits from substanual
professional mdemmity insurance Where costs are likely to be mewrred in defending and concluding such claims, a provision is
made based on management's assessment of the specific circumstances in each case and the hikely costs to be incurred by the
Group which 1s recorded under "Other provisions”. No separate disclosure 1» 1:ade of the cost or nature of claims covered by
msurance as to do so could scniously prejudice the position of the Group
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20. Provisions and Employee benefit obligations (continued)

LLP
Employee benelit obligations Provisions
. : Other
Pensions Annuities Property i Total
pl’ﬂ\'lSl(}l’lS
fm £m fm £m £m
(note 21) {note 22}
Balance at 1 May 2021 - 156 14 5 175
Transferred feom Clifford
('hance .onden Limied* 226 ) - ° 220
(harge during the year 2 . 1 26 29
Amounts paid ¢ uttised / released (15 (18) - 1y (34)
Nel gam due to changes \n actuanal a8 N . . (%)
assumptions
Balance at 30 Apnl 2022 129 138 15 30 312
Charge dunng the year q 4) . t 1
Amounts pad  utilised / refeased (24) (18) - 3] (60)
Net gain due to changes in actuanal an i i i an
assumptions
Balance at 30 Aprnil 2023 92 ilé 15 13 216
The above amounts have been disclosed m e balance sheet as follows
Cunsolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2922
£m £m fm £
Employce benefit obligavions - current 8 21 i35 3
_mploy ce benelit obhgations - non-current 207 266 193 248
223 287 208 267
Provisions - current - | 1
Prosisians - non-current 19 34 28 44
19 35 28 43
264 342 36 32

* In the previous year. the LLP. CCLL and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme, in which certain employees of CCLI
participated had agreed under a 'Flexible Apportionment Arrangement' Lo the transfer of the whole pension liability of CCLL 1o
the | 1P as on 30 November 2021 The outstanding pension Liability on 30 November 2021 was £220m. The transfer was
accounted for as a capital contribution by the LLP n CCLL and resulied in an ncrease iy invesiments by an amount equal to

the pension habiiy at the date of the ranster
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21. Defined benefil pension scheme
Chifford Chance Pension Trustees | imited 1s the trustee of a defined benefit scheme in which certain employees of Chilford
Chance Londen Limited participated | "the Scheme”t The Scheme was closed to future acerual with eftect from 30 Apnl 2011

The asscts of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group

Payments it the Scheme are assessed in accordance with the advice ef an independent qualified actwary with the funding rate
intended to enable the Scheme to be fully funded over ime

A full tneanial acwarial valuation of the Scheme has been camied out as at 30 Apnil 2022 but has not yet been concluded. and
updated as at 3 April 21123 by a qualified independent actuary Details of such updated valuation are as under

The key accounting assumpuons used are set out below

2023 2022
scount rate 4 8% 31%
Future pension increases - pensions acerued privr ta 30 Apnl 20433 3 0% 32%
Future pension increases - pensions accrued after 30 April 2075 20% 23%
Price intlation 3 2% 33%

Mortahity assumpticns have been based on 53 SAPS Light 1ables with CMI 2021 improvements (2022 53 SAPS Light tables
CMI 2021 mmprovements). projected according to each member's year of ith The assumptions for both yvcars include an
allowance for increased tongevits assuniing a long-term rate of improvement of | 0% per annum

The assumed hife expeciatiens on rebireinent at age 63 are

2023 2022
Retiring today-
Males 88! 883
Females 396 898
Retining m 20 vears.
Males 891 893
I emales 90 8 g1 0
I'he amount recognised i the consehdated mcome stalement was as tallows
2023 2022
£m fm
Interest charge 'net) under net finance casts (note 8) 4 3
The amount recogrised i the consohidawed other comprehensive income was as follows
2023 2022
£m fm
Remeasurement gamn from changes in financial assumptions (233 (134
Remeasurement loss from changes in experience 13 6
Remeasurement (gan)loss from changes i demographic assumpuons 4) 12
Remeasurement loss on the scheme assets 207 11
Gan recogmsed m the consohdated statement of comprehiensi ¢ income (17 (125)
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21. Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)

The liability included in the consolidated balunce sheet wus as follows:

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation 534 743 534 743
Fair value of plan assets (442) {614) (442} (614)
Present value of net obligation (note 20) 92 129 92 129

Movements in the present value of definced benefit obligations in the
year were gs follows:

Consolidated LLP
1023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m fm £fm
Al the beginning of the year 743 869 743 -
Transferred from Chifford Chance London Limited® - - - 971
[nierest on obhigations 23 17 n 7
Remeasurement gain from changes in financial (233) (154) 233 41)
assumptions
Remeasurement 1oss/(gain} from changes in expenence 13 6 13 [P
Remeasurement (gmn}"lms [rom changes in ) 12 “) 12
demographic assumptions
Benefits pad (8) 1)) (8) )
At lhe end of the year 534 743 534 743
Movements in the fair value of Scheme assets were as [ollows:
Consalidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m Lm £m im
At the beginning of the vear 614 308 614 -
Transferred from Chifford Chance | ondon 1 mnited* - - - 751
Inigrest meonie on Scheme assets 19 12 19 5
Remeasurement loss on the schenke ussets 20N {n {207 (133)
Contrsbutions made 24 22 24 15
Benelits paid (8) (& 18) (4)
At the end of the vear 442 614 442 614
The asseis held by the Scheme were as follows 2023 % of 2022 Y of
value total value total
£m vatue £m value
L. quities and other growih assets FEY. 32% 358 58%
Liability driven mvestment 186 42% 211 J4%
Bonds - 0% 29 S0y
Other assets 24 6% 16 1%
442 100% 614 10020

* In the previous year. the LIP. CCIL and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme. in which certain employees of CCLI
participated had agreed under a 'Flexible Apportionment Arrangement’ to the transfer of the whale pension hability of CCLL to
the 1 EP as on 30 Novembher 2021 The owstanding pension habihiy on 38 November 2021 was £220m  The (ransfer was
accounted for as a capital contribution by the LLP m CCLE and resulted in an increase i investments by an amount cqual Lo the
pension habibity at she date of the transier

Based oo the results of he most reeentls completed trnienmal acluanal valuation as a1 30 April 2019, the employer has agreed
that 1t will amm te eliminate the Scheme s deficit (as assessed on the ongoing fundmg basis) by 31 May 2528 The contnbutions
paid by the employer for the penod from | May 2022 10 30 April 2023 were £24m Funding levels are monitored on an annual
basts and the next tnenntal valustion as at 30 Apnil 2022 s currenthy underway  Lapected employ er contribulions to the Scheme
for the vear ending 30 Apnt 2024 arc around £17m  “here are no member contribubans expected for the year to 30 Apnl 2024
The weighted average duranon of the defined benefit obligauen 1s around 18 years
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21, Defined benelit pension scheme {continued)

Sensitivities

The key assumptions used for the actuanal saluation are the discount rate. pnce nflanon and merabty  If different
assurnplions were used this could have a matenia. effect on the results disclosed  The sensitivity of the results to these
assumptions is as follows.

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Disenunt rate less 0.25% per aniien £m fm f£m £m
Present value of defined benefit obhigation 339 784 559 784
Fair value of assets (442) (61 (442) (614)
Revised net pension liability 117 170 17 170
Revised total charge 1o the income statement 5 5 3 5
RP1 inflation plus 0.23% per annumn fm Lm £m fm
Present value of defined benefit obligation 554 778 554 778
Far s alue of assets (442) (ti_l_f#_l 1442, (614}
Revised net pension liability i12 163 1i2 164
Revised total charge o the income statement 5 5 5 5
Vierialin: assumptiosy with 1 25% per
it long term rate of inprovenient £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit 538 750 538 730
Faiwr value of asseis (442) (614) (442) (614)
Revised net pension Liability 86 136 S6 136
Rey1sed total charge 10 the income statenwnt 4 4 4 4

The sensitivity information shown above 15 approximate and has been detemiied taking into account the duration ot the
liabilitics and the overali profile of the plan membership

Risks

The Group is expised 1o a number of risks through the Scheme of which the most significant are detmted below

isset volatdin:

The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference 10 corporate bond yiclds i assets underperform this
yield. this will create a deficit The Scheme holds a sigmificant proportion of growth assets (nciuding equites, diversified
growth funds and property ) which are espected 1o outperterm corprrate bonds i the long-tenn while resulting n
volalility and risk in the short-term. The atlocation (o grawth assets s momtared such that 11 15 consistent with the
Scheme’s long term objectives

Changes it bond yields

A decrease in corporaie bond vields will increase the Schemu's Jabitities although tns will be partially offset by an
mereaze in the vajue of the Schueme s bond heldinys
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21. Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)
Inflanon risk
The majonty of the Scheme's benefit obligations are linked to wflation and higher mflation will lead to migher habliues
(although. n mast cases. caps on the level of inflatiorary incrcases are 1 ptace ta protect agaiasi exiceme nflationy A
significant proportion of the Scheme's assets are vested m a hiabiliy dnven investment ponfolio which is designed 1o maich
the habiinies of the Scheme and provide protection agamst creases in inflattion

Life expeciancy

The majority of the Scheme's obhigauons are to provide beaelits for the hie of the member, so increases in the hife expectancy
will result i an increase (a the lablitics

ln addition to the UK scheme, the Firm operates some smaller defined benefit schemes in other countries The total pension
cost for the year and the aggregate assets and habdities of these schemes were nol matenal

22, Annuity obligalions te current and former partaners

An independett qualified actuary has aisosacd the cost of annuaty vbligaiiens The economic assumptions used by the actuan
n assessing the cost of anpuity oblipations in both the Conselidated and L | 1? financial staternents are as follows

2023 2022

o %

Dhscount rate 51 3.0
Rate of price mflation 34 48

The cost of annuitics which are dependent upon the future prohtabilits of the inn has been estimated based upen current and
projected levels of profitability and having regard w g cap appliable o such annuits payments

Amounts recognaised in the consolidated income statement were as follows 2023 2022
£m im
Movements in prosision arising from
Current service cost 3 3
Qnher aciuaral gains {12} (6)
Amouni credited 1o the consphidated icome sialement* (&2 3
Interest costs associated with obligations shown under net finance costs (note 8) 3 2
Total eredit to the consolidated income statement (note 24) {4} [88]

* Of this amount. 8 charge of Elin (2022 £2m has heen mncluded within members' remuneration charged as an expicitse, and a
credit of £10m (2022 £3m) in relalion Lo piiners whe were not members and former pariners has been ancluded in saff and
related costs
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22, Annuity obligations to current and former partaers (continued)

Mo ements 1n the net liability recognised 1n the cons.vidated balance sheet were as follows

Cousolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m £fm £m
Provision at the beginning of the year 138 179 138 136
Credit 1o the mcome statement 4t N ) .
Annunes pad 2n 2m (18) (18
Provision at the end of the year (nate 20 133 158 116 138

The basis of calculation of the annuities provision 1n the batance sheet of Clifford Chance LLP is the same as set out above m
relation to the consolidated balance sheet but takes inte account only those parners whose annuity entitléments are a direct
obligation of Chifford Chance 1 1 P Annuily entislements of other partners are a contingent obligation of Chifford Chance LLP

Sensitivities

The key assumption used tor the actuanal valuation s the discount rate The impact of a & [0 decrease te the discount rate
would be {0 increase the liability by approximately £1m (2022 £1m)

23. VIembers' capital
Consolidated and LLP

2023 2022

£m fm

Total members' capital at the beginning of the vear 142 157
Capital contributed during the year - .
Capnal repald ducing the year (28 (15
Total members” capial at the end ol the vear FId 142

Non-US members arc cequired 1o give a nuaimum of not less than sex months nanee of reurement. whilst US members are not
required to give nolice Members' capital which 1s measured at cost 1s repavable within s1x months of retirement. Members’
capital 15 required to be classified as a liabihity. with capatal doe to LS and retinng partners cCassified s a current liabality . and
the renaining habuny classified as a non-current hability
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24, Statement of movemenis in net assets/(liabilities) of members excluding members® interests classilicd as liabilities

A summan of movements in net assels / {Liabilities) aunbuiable to members excluding members' interests classified as
frabilities sirice the last balance sheet date 15 as fulfows,

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£fm £fm fm £m
frestated) frestated)
Net assets ¢ (liablitics) attributable to members excluding
members interests classified as liabilihes at the begmming of 541 3n2 12 2n
the year
Proflt for the year 742 739 648 377
I:nrclgn exchange differemces arising on translatien of 14 49 1 .
foreign operations
Actuanal gain on defined benefit pension scheme 17 125 17 78
Peferred tax on defined henefit pension scheme - (56) - -
Decrease i provisions altrihuizble 0 members (un (9} (14 9
Capital repay ments (net) (2R} (15 (28} (15)
Probi distnibutions and relaed 12x {730) (669) 14793 315)
Net assets ¢ (habilities) atinbutable to members evcluding
members interesis classilied as habihwes at the end of the 559 341 278 112
year

25, Related party transactions

Within the Group financiab statements. balances between Cliftord Chance 11 P and us subsidiary entitics have been
chiminated on consohidation

Durmg the vear. Chftord Chanee LLP provided managenment and legal senices 10 1ts subsidiany entiies totaling £177m
(2022 £130m) Management and begal senvices were purchased from other Group members totaling £478m (2022, £408m).
Profit distribution pad by the [ TP on behalf of subsidiany entitees totabing net £10m (2022 nec £62m). The LLP has
recerved dividend inconw of £158m (2022 £nil) duning the vear. The balances outstanding between Cliftord Chance LIP
and 115 subsidiary enties at the end of the financral year are shown m notes 15 and 13

The key management personnel comprise the Executive Leadership Group (ELG)  The total remuncrauen of the 16 ELG
members (2022 14 L1 G members) in respect of the financial y car amounted 10 £38m (2022 £34m). The tolal remuneration
n respect of the financial year for the relatve of an ELG member. who 15 an employee. amounted to £1m (2022 £1m).
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26. Financial assets and liabilities

The fotllowing informauon 1s provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 7 “Financial [nstruments: Disclosures”

Caregories of financial assets and liabilities

The lollowmng table categarises the carrying value of the financial assets and liabuities at the balance sheet date In each case,
the fair » alue 1s not matenally different to the camrying yvalue.

Consolidated LLP

Financial assets 2023 20212 2023 2022

fm Em Em fm

{restated,
Accrued income 376 369 162 163
Trade recervables 516 452 267 217
Amounts due from subsichany entities - - 333 274
Finance lease receivables 94 122 86 108
Amounts due from members 87 Bl - -
Cash at bank and in hand 232 378 96 138
1,305 1 402 964 200
Financial liabilities
Trade and other current pay ables excluding accruals and
deferred income 266 244 98 92
Amounts due 1o subsidiany entities - - 406 406
I case hiabihties 636 583 266 304
Amounis due 1o members . . 13 1%
Members' capital 114 142 14 142
Annwities 133 15% 116 138
Accruals 216 226 64 73
1.365 1328 1.099 1193

Risks arising from financial assets and liabifities

The following summarises the principal risks associated with the group's financial assets and habihties and iow those nshs are
managed,

Ligprdin: and capial risk

The husiness is predominantly financed by partners’ capual and undistributed carmings with a RCF asalable  T'he capital
structure is reviewed regularly to ensure that it is adequate 10 fund the current and projected needs of 1he business The
adequacy of borrowing facilities is regularly reviewed in [ight of projections of fulure cash flows. The Group has comfortably
complied with the banking covenants set under the borrowing facilities

The Group continues to focus on working capital management. in particular inplementng unprovements o manage WIP and
debtor days. As at 30 Apnil 2023 there are total undrawn committed borrowing facilities ¢f £130m i both the Group and the
LLP The Group also has a substantial cash a1 bank balance of £232m (2022: £378m).

Currency risk

The reporting currency is Sterling but the Group's business is intemational. Within each office. revenucs and costs are
predominantly in the same currency. Fhe consohidated balance sheet exposures o currencies other than Sterbing (principally 1'S
Dollars and Euros) are regularly monitored and are considered to be naturally hedged.

Credit risk

The treasury policy requires that surplus funds be deposited only with approved counterparties and within counterpanty hnuts
An assessment is made of the credut risk associated with clients by reviewmg independent ralimgs and by monuioning \he level
of unpaid fees.
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26. Financial assets and liabilities {continucd)

The Group has two types of financial asset that are subject to the expected credit loss model
- Trade receivables
Accrued income

While cash at bank and in hand and amount due from members are also subject (o the impaimment requirements of IFRS 9, the
wlentified impaiment loss was not matertal

The Group applies the IFRS 9 symplified approach 1o measure expected credu losses which uses a hietume expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and accrued income, and thercfore does nol track changes in credit nsk Witk respect (o
amounts due from proup undertakings, a general approach under [FRS 9 15 applied under which the loss aliowance is
measured al an amount equal to the hfetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has mcreased
significantly since mtial recognition However, 1f, at the reporting date, the credit risk on the amounts duc from group
undertakings have not increased sigmificantly since initial recognition. an entily shall measure the foss aliowance at an amount
equal to 12-month expecied credit losscs

To measure the expected credit losses trade receivables and accrued income have been grouped based on shared credit nsk
chaructenstics and the days past due Assessing the credit nisk on a client by client basis would mvolve significant cost and
effort As such. credul nisk 15 considenid on an office by office basis as cach oftice can be considered to reflect a particular
fevel of credit nsk

Trade recervables and accrued meome are written oft when there 1s no probability of recovery Indicators would include
fature to nmake any contractual pay ments, entering liquidaton prucedures or clear signs of financial difficulties

The accrued incomic amounts relate fo unbitled swork m progress 4 nder the ECL. provision mainx methodology | the “less than
30 days’ loss ratio (Group 0 5% (2027 88%) 1P 0 1% 2022 6%} calculated in respect of current trade receivables. is
applied 10 the whole of the WIP balanice afler spectfic provisions on the basis that all of these amounts are unbilled and
therefore fully currem

The Group considers the ageing profile of billings and recenables osver a three-year perind. being that pened over which more
than 99°¢ of mvoices are cellected The expected loss rales are based on the weighted average rates of pavment prefiles over
the bibls 1ssued during the financial y caes ended 30 Apn) 2019 and 2020, adpusted by country specific credil default swap raies
to reflect corrent and forward-lookmp information an macroeconomic factors affecting the abihity of the custonwrs 10 setue the
recenables
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16. Financial asscts and liabilities (continued)

The loss allowance as at 30 April 2023 and 30 Apnl 20122 for debitors due is set cut below  The loss rate for 30 days has been
wholly applied to the accrued income balance.

Consolidated

Ageing Gross trade receivables due Loss rates Loss allonance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m %o % £m £m
3i) days 3o 265 07 08 2) [#3]
50 days 19 71 13 14 () {n
90 days 55 39 36 il (2} 4]
t81 days 52 54 77 74 (4) )
P vear 37 31 243 194 (9) 6
3 vears 37 34 03 882 (26) {30)
Over 3 years 17 17 oY 824 (17 {14}
8§77 511 (61) {59)

Accrued income Loss rates Luss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
im £m % Yo im £m
Current 378 3n 03 08 (2) (3)

LLP

Ageing Grass trade receivables due Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m L Yo %o £m £m
3t dmvs 164 35 06 07 [1)] 13]
60 davs EE 34 - - - -
90 davs 24 17 - 59 - (L}
180 davs 19 20 53 50 tn (
| vear 16 12 188 167 3 2)
3 years 14 16 643 938 (9} (13
Over 3 years 3 7 1000 571 {8) {4)
289 24 (22} (24)

Accrued income Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m %o % £m £m
Current 162 164 a1 06 {0} n
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26. Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Accrued income

i he 1able below analy ses accrued income at the balance sheet date by peographic region

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

Americas 58 56 - -
Asia Pacific 74 76 21 25
Continental Europe 121 115 19 18
Middle Fast 8 10 8 10
United Kingdom 115 112 114 110
Total 376 369 162 163
Trade receivables
Ihe 1able below analyses trade recervables at the balance sheet date by geographic region

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2013 2022

fm f£m £m £fm

Amencas 56 50 - -
Asta Pacific 68 73 4 4
Continental Lurope 158 140 31 4
Middle East 26 18 25 18
Urited Kmgdom 208 17] 207 17)
Total 516 152 267 217
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26. Financial assets and liabilities (continned)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts were as follows.

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £m tm £m
Balance at the beginning of the vear (59 (3% 24) 25)
Increasc in provision (25) (28) {6) [E))]
Reversal of provision 10 10 5 6
Amounts utilised during the yvear 14 17 4 5
Foreign exchange movements (1) {3 () ()
Balance at the end of the ycar (61) (59 (22) {24)

Trade receivables not yet paid are reviewed regularly and provisions arc established on a specific basis 1f collection of the
amount due is i doubt Amounts are wrilien off against the provision once 1t becomes clear that ne further recoven s hikely

10 occur, at which point enforcement activily will cease

Net impainnent losses on financial assets recogrised 11 consohdaled income statement were as follows

Consolidated
2023 2022
£m £m
Net mpairment losses - mavement in foss allowance for trade receivables (1% (18)
Net unpairment losses - movement 1n loss allowance for accrued income 1 [2)
(i4) (20)

Crrency profile of financial assets and ligbilities

The currency profile of the Group's financial assets and habilities at the balance sheet date was as follows

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
(restated)
Financial assets £m £m fm fm
GBpe 362 378 166 458
usoD 145 215 17 28
EUR 312 09 121 138
Other 286 300 260 276
1,305 1.402 964 900

Financial liabilities
GBP 732 800 636 886
usD 242 134 30 15
EUR 240 261 101 95
Other 15t 133 292 197
1365 1328 1.099 1.193
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26. Financisl assets gnd libilities (continued)
Maturity prafile of finaucial liabilities

The follow ing tables show the maturity profile of the Group's financial labilities at the batance sheet date

2023

Trade and other cumrent
payables excluding accruals
and deferred ncome
Members' capital *
Anmnlies

Accruals

202)

Trade and other cumrent
payables excluding accruals
and deferred wrcome
Amounts duc to subsidiany
enties

Members' capital *
Amounts due to members
Annaies

Accruals

CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnil 2323

Consolidated
More than
-1 year 1-8 years 5 years Others Total
£m fm £m fm fm
266 - - 266
B - - 106 114
13 57 58 - 133
216 - - - 216
508 357 58 106 v #
LLP
More than
0-1 year -5 years 5years Others Teial
£m fm £m fm £m
98 - - - 98
406 - - 406
8 - - 106 114
15 - - - 35
I3 49 32 - 116
64 ~ - - LE]
626 49 52 106 833 #

*As per the parinershap agreement mombers’ capilal s wepayable within six months of a member retinng from the
parership. and accordingly. the maturits of thes amount 15 dependent upon when a parter retires, amound under -1
vear” represerus capual repayable of such retired partners The remaunng portion of members' capital classilied as

Qthers 1s dependent on the dates of meinber retirements which (s unknown beyond 12 months

# the maturity profile of lease trabilitres of 30 April 2623 s included t Notc 27 Group £636m {undiscoumted £7 78m).

LI P £266m (undiscounted £28%m)

Page 59



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statemenis for the year ended 3¢ April 2623

26. Financial assets and liabitities (continued)
Maturity profile of financial liabifities

The following tables show the maturity profile of the Group's financial Labilities at the balance sheet date

Consolidated
More than
2022 0-f year 1-5 years S years Others Total
£m fm £m £m fm
Trade and other current
payables excluding accruals
and deferred income 244 - . - 244
Members capital * 9 . - 133 142
Annuities 21 59 78 - 158
Accruals 229 - - - 229
503 39 78 133 773 H
LLP
More than
2022 0-1 year 1-5 years S years Others Total
£m fm fm fm fm

Trade and other currend

payables excluding accruals
and deferred mcome g2 - - 92
Amounts due to subsidiary

ennities fresiated) 476 - . - 406
Members' vapital * g _ B 133 "
Amomits due to nwinbers e R _ ) 36
Annwmtes 19 3 66 . 138
Accruals 75 ) ) . 75
637 33 66 133 889 4

*As per the partnership agreement, members' capital is repayvable within siv months of a member rehinng from the
partnership, and accordingly . the maturity of this amount s dependent upon when a partner retires, amount under “0-1
year” represents capual repayable of such retired parers. The remaiming portion of members' capital classified as
Otliers 15 dependent on the dates of member retirements which is unknown bevond 12 months.

# The maturity profile of lease habilies of 30 April 2022 is included in Note 27 Group £355m (undiscounted £601m),
LLP £304m (undiscounted E323m)
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26. Financial assets snd linbilities (continued)

Sensitiviry to marker risks

Foreign currency nisk anses on financial instruments that are denominaied in a currency other than the functionat currency in
which they are measured. including foreign currency denominated intercompany reccivables and payables which. although
they climmate in the Group's financial siatemenis, the effect on the result of their revaluation under 1AS 21, is not fully
elminated

[he most significant forcign currencies to the Group are US Doflars and the Euro. The sensitivity of the Group’s income
statement 1o changes in these exchange rates anses from US Dollar and Euro denominated financial insteuments. The Group

docs nut engage m cash flow hedging aclivities,

The exchange rates used in the preparation of these finanaal staiements were as follows:

2023 2922
Average Closing Average Closing
rate rate rale rate
Unated States Dollar - £ 124 126 | 33 1.26
furos) £ 116 .14 1.18 [19

The following table details the Group's sensitiviiy to a [0%e mcrease or decrease in the strength of Sterling to the US Dollar
and to the Furo 10% 15 1he senstin iy fate used when reportng foragn currency risk intemalfy to key imanagement personnel
and represents management's assessiment of the reasanably possible change in forcign exchange rates

A negative number below indicates a decrease i profit and other equny where Sterling strengthens 10% against the relevant
currency For a 10% weakeming of Sterling against the relesant currency . there would be a comparable impact on the profit

and other equity, and the balances below would be positive

Consolidated

Impact on other

t-t fi
Impact on post-tax profit components of equity

2023 2022 2023 1022
frestated) frestated)
fm £m £ fm
Sterhing 10% stronger agamst US Dollar g n - -
Sterling 10 stronger agamst Euro N () - -
LLFP

[mpact on other

Impact en post-tax profit .
r B P companents of equity

2023 2012 1023 1022

fm £fm £m £m

trestated) (resiared:

Sterling 10%e stronger against U% Dollar (6] m - -
Sterhing 10%0 stronger agamst Euro (3} (o} . -

{he Group's net mterest ¢ust on external borrowmgs 1s £n1l and accordsngly the sensitinaty of the group's profus and finangia
assets and Labilitics to changes w nlerest rates 18 msignificant
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27. Leases
{a) As a lessee:

This notc provides smformation for leases where the Group 1s a lessee For leases where the Group 1s a lessor see note 27 (b).

(i} Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relahng to leases:

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Right-ol-use assets £m Em £m £m
Propernty 450 326 122 125
Other 3 3 - -

453 329 122 123

The following are the changes in the carrying value of nght-of-use assets for the year

Ceonsolidated LLP

Property Other Total Property
Cost: £m £m £m £m
Balance as at | May 2021 4{2 s 417 141
Additons 77 1 18 28
Terminations (104 (21 (12) (6)
Translation difference . 8 - 8 2
Balance as at 30 April 2022 487 4 491 165
Additions 183 | 184 19
Terminations (10 [$h) n (6)
Translation difference 7 - 7 |
Balance as at 30 April 2023 667 4 671 179
Accunnedated Depreciation;
Balance as at | May 2021 (10 {2} {106} (21
Depreciation (5" h (58) (20)
Terminations S 2 7 2
Translation difference {5) . {5) (1)
Balance as at 30 Aprsl 2022 {160 (N (162) (40)
Depreciation (63) (1 (64) b
Terminations g ] 9 4
Translation difference (i) - (1) -
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023 (217) (1) (218) (37}
Carrying amonnt:
As at 30 April 2022 326 3 329 125
As at 3¢ April 2023 450 3 433 122

The Group leases many assets which are primaniy buildmgs for its office space worldwide

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Leasc liabilitics £m £m Em im
Current 91 94 46 43
Non-current 343 461 220 259

636 555 266 * 304 =

*this lease liabilily balance includes £21%9m {2022 £263m1 pay able o an mtermediate lessor {related party )
As at 34 April 2023 three lease contracts relating e 1 endon Dusseldorl and Brussels offices were committed and not

commenced amountlnig to £336m As at 30 April 2022 an 8 year lease contract which related to the Sydney office was
vommiticd but not comumenced amounting to £26m
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27, Leases (continued)
(4) As b lessee (¢ontinued):

{i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (continued)

The following 15 the movement in lease liabilitics during the year.

Balance as at 1 May 2021

Additions

Terminauons

Finance cost accrued duning the year
Pavment of lease habilisies
Translation difference

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2022
Additions

Terminations

t wance cost accrued during the year
Pay ment of jease hatihitics
Translation difference

Balance as at 30 April 2023

Total undiscounted Jeasc liahilitics as 8¢ 30 Aprit

Maturity analysis - contractusl undiscounted cash Mows
Less lhan one year

One 1o two years

Two to three ycars

Threc to four years

Four 10 five years

More than five years

(ii} \mounts recognised in the income statement

The income statement shows the follow mg amounts relaung to leases

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assels
Property
Onher

Interest on lease habilities (included n linance ¢ost)
Income from sub-leasing right-ol-use assets - operating leases
Income from sub-leasing nght-of-use assets - finance leases

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

Nei cash outflow for leases

Consolidated LLP
Property Other Total Total
£m £m £m im
558 4 362 320
9 1 84 29
(33 - (5) 3)
12 - 12 4]
[)] {2) (101) {49}
1 - 7 1
552 3 355 304
179 | 180 15
(2) - ) 2)
14 - 14 7
(116) 1] (1 (39)
[ . 6 [
633 3 636 266
Consolidated Lie
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m fm £m
11l 106 51 51
jLd n> 51 3
T £8 51 51
8y i1 5L 50
84 49 52 30
291 153 33 70
778 601 289 323
Consolidaled
2023 2022
fm Em
63 57
| 1
64 58
14 12
(3 (3
{2) (3)
on {75}
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27, Leases {continued)

(2) As a lessee (continued):

(iii) Extension and termination options

There are no matenal termination optiuns included m the property leases across the Group The Group has included some
material extenston options for the Singapore & Australian office leases as management 1s reasonably certain the extension
options, held by the Group will be exervised. Leases due to expire within 12 menths of year end were examined to see 1f

there were any exerzisable by lessec that may potentially be extended In cunsidenng all the facts and circumstances the
Group determined that none of these feases expiring itz 12 months should mclude an extended lease term

(iv) Liguidity

The Group dnes not face a sigmficant liquidity nisk with rezard 1o 1is lcase habilitics as the current assets are sufficient lo
meet the obligaions related 1o lease habilities as and when they fall due for more detatls on the hquidity nisk see note 26

(b) As a lessor:

L.case income from lease contracts in which the Group acts as a lessor is as below

Consolidated
2023 2022
im £m
tinance Income
Finance irceme on the net i estment i the lease 2 3
Operating lease
I =ase income 1 1
I'he follovang is the movement in linance [ease recen ables for the year
Consolidated LLr
£m Em
Balance as at | May 2021 143 124
Interest income acerued duning the year 3 2
I cas¢ receipts (26) (18)
Foreign exchange resene 2 .
Balance as of 36 Apnl 2022 122 108
nterest meome accried during the year 2 2
[ ease recepts (26) 20
Termmations 4) {4)
Balance as of 30 Aprd 2123 94 86
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27. Leases (continued)

{b) As a lessar (¢ontinued):

Lease receivables
Current
Non-current

Lease reccivables
Current
Nori-current

Operating leases

Consolidated LLP
2023 2023

£m £m

24 17

70 69

94 Ba
Consolidated LLP
2022 2022
im £m
24 17
a8 kil
122 108

The foliowmy table scts out the maturiy analysis of the lease payments for the sub leases classified as operating leascs.

showing the undiscounted leasc pay ments to be receved after the reporting date

| essthan ] year
One to two vears
Two o three years
Three 1o four years
Four to Ive years
More than 5 years
fotal undiscounted lease pay ment

Less than | year

One ta two years

1wo tu three vears

Threc to four years

Four io five vears

More than 5 years

Total undiscounied lease payment
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2023 2023

£m £m

2 2
Consolidaled LLP
2022 2022

fm fm

3 2
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27. Leases (continued)
(b) As a lessor (continued):

Finance leases

The follow ing table sets out the maturity analysis of the Icase payments for the sub leases classificd as finance leases.
showing the undiscounted lcase payments (o be received after the reporting date

Consolidated LLP

2023 2023

£m fm

Less than | year 25 18
One to two years 18 18
Fwo to three years 18 18
Fhree to four years 18 18
Four 1o five years 19 18
Mare than 5 years - -
Total undiscounted lease payments receivable 98 20
« mearned finance income {4} “hH
Total Iease receivables 94 86

Consolidated LLP

1022 2022

im fm

l.ess than | yvear 26 19
One o 1wo years 25 18
Jwo 10 three vears 19 19
Three 1o four years 19 19
Four 1o five vears 19 19
More than 5 years 21 20
Total undiscounted lease payments reecivable ) 129 14
Uneamed finance income el @
Total Jease receivablcs ’ 122 108
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28. Restatement of Consolidated any Limited Liability Partnership Financial Statemenis

The CCLLP Partnership Agreement sSels out the basis of determining ihe profits available for allocaung profits to Partners.
Distributions of these profits (o members are on a discretionary basis and are subject to approval by the Executive Leadership
Group each year Prior o the year ended 30 Apnl 2022, any profits camed at @ subsidiary which were then distnibuted to
mcmbers were recorded by CCLLP 1n an iira-group fecetvable account, with a correspondmg entry within reserves of the
CCL LP standalone accounts (the Limuted Liabihty Partnership Financial Statements)

In preparing the Aninual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 Apad 2022, management revicwed the apprapriatencss of
this accouning ireatment and concluded that the audit trail setting out the appropriate accounting entnies and counterparues 1o
the tra- group balances a1 that me was not complete Additionally at this tme CCLIP dud not have a formalised contractual
refationship with 1ts subsidiary entities for such transactions Therefore. a prior §ear adjustment was recorded to derccognisc
the tntra-group balance with a commesponding correcting adjustment in the reserves of CCLLP This was the correction of an
cror

During the year ended 30 Aprul 2023, management have undertaken a further exercise 1o

1) Calculate the indwvidual intra-group balances hetween CCLLP and each subsidiary entuy as at 30 April 2021, 30 April
2022 and 30 Apnl 2023 which anise from profit distribunions paid by CCLLP on behalf of a subsidiany entily, or vice-versa,

2) Put tn place documentation in the form of agreements between CCLLP and relevant subsidiary entitics 1o formalise the
existmg practice of allocating and disinbutiag LLP profits

As a result the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023 includes a prior period restatement 1o the
standalone financial statements of CUT | P, to recognise the resulting correct intra-group balances with a corresponding entry
in reserves for the hstorie profit allocatons m the standalone balance sheet of CCT LP which anses from 4 correction of »
prnor pented eémor This restatenient also recogmises foreigh exchange translation differences on the revised intra-group
balances and addionally ncludes an adjusiment 10 remove foraign exchange translation differences in the foreign exchange
reserve related to balances derecoginsed m the preor Yeur that remained i the reserve m error This restalement s set out
restatement | below Restatement | alse mcludes 4 small adjustment 1o distributeons i the sear ta 30 Apnil 2022 (£3m),

During the process of comecung the intra-group balances as noted above, 1t was noted that forergn exchange gas and losses
arsing on other histornic mtra-group balances had been meomrectly classificd an the foretgn cvehanpe reserve rather than in
profit and loss reserve  This restatement which is the correction of an error 15 set out 1 restatement 2 below  There was also a
correction of an error to the consolidated finanaial statenwnts for the same reasan. which has buen noted separately in aable
helow (st out as reéstatemeny 2a)
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28. Restatement of Consolidated and Limited Liability Partnership Financial Statements (continued)

The restatement outlined above m relation to the censolidated financial statements 1s set out as follows

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at | May 2021

Audited Restatement 2a Restated
fm £m £m
Resenves* 141 - 14
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement 2a Restated
im £m £m
Reserves* 334 - 3
Consolidated Income Statement {or the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement 2a Restated
fm fm fm
Operating costs
Other operating cosls (253} (i5) (268)
Consolidated Statement of Compreheasive Income for the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement 2a Restaled
fm Em £m
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
Consalidated Income statement:
Net forcign exchange differences recognised within resenes 34 13 49
Consolidated Cash Flaw Statement for the vear ended 30 April 2022
Audited  Resratement 2a Restated
£m fm £m
Cash flows from operating actividics 748 (13 733
Cash flows from linancing actinv ies {763) 15 (748:

*The resulting restatement to ‘Rescrves’ as at 1 May 2021 is an mcrease of £8m 13 Foreigr: Fachange Resenves' and
corresponding reduction of £8m in 'Other Reserves”. Similarly. as at 30 Apnl 2022 there 15 an increase of £23m in "Fureign

Exchange Resenes' and a corresponding reduction of £23m i 'Other Reserves’
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28. Restatement of Consolidated and Limited Liabitiey Partnership Financial Statements (continucg)

The reslatements 1 and 2 outlined above in relanon to 1he standalone financial statements are set out as follows

Limited Liability Partnership Balance Sheet as at | May 2021

Audited  Restatement | Restatement 2 Restated
£m £m im £m
ASSETS
irade and other receivables 458 20 - 478
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payabies 490 (98) 591
REPRESENTED BY:
Other reserves (387) 101 K] (27
§ oreign exchange reserves 26 17 {14 29
Total Reserves (361) 118 - (243)
Limited Liability Partacrship Balance Sheet as at 30 Aprii 2022
Audited Restatement ! Restatement 2 Restated
£m fm im £m
ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 489 40 - 529
LIABILITIES
1rade and other pay ables TR 1146} 592
REPRESENTED BY:
Other resenves (as at 1 May 2021) (387) 101 14 i272)
boreign exchange reserves (s at | May 2021) 26 17 () 29
Prafit for the year ended 30 April 2022 332 53 18) 377
Other comprehensive income (or the year
ended 30 April 2022 75 12 b 93
Profit distributions and related tax for the
vear ended 30 April 2022 (318) 3 (313)
Total Reserves (272) 186 - (86)
Limited Liability Partnership Cash Flow Statement for the y car ended 30 April 2022
Audited  Restatement ]  Restatement 2 Restated
£m £m Em £m
Cash flows from operating activities 3d3 (15 (8) 322
Cash flows from financing activihies {354 15 8 331

The corrections (o profi. othier comprehensive income and profit disinbutions and related 1ax for the year ended 30 April 2022
as noted in the eardicr table also result in a correction between operaing and financing activities i the cash Now statement In
prier ycars the income siatement and other comprehensne mcome movements was not correctly mapped agamst the
corresponding inlercompany receivable’pay able balance sheet movements which resulted n operatimg and financing cash flow

nwvements being reported inerror The restatcmient corrects this
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